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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHRES

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The intensive measures implemented by various governments
have significantly enhanced market liquidity and investors’
confidence. General economy becomes stable while the financial
market reveals signs of a rally. Benefited from the positive
momentum in Chinese Mainland, the economy in Hong Kong
has broadly improved. The financial market was particularly
robust with abundant liquidity on the back of market confidence
in the Chinese capital market. Focusing on financial services, the

Group was able to take advantage of this economic recovery.

During the reporting period, the Group’s financial results
displayed a year-on-year improvement. The Group recorded
a revenue of HK$272 million (2009: HK$247 million) and
- a profit before taxation of HK$261 million (2009: loss of
~ HKS$16 million). Profit attributable to owners of the Company

S _Lamounted to HK$224 million (2009: loss of HK$19 million),
~ while earnings per share was HK6.06 cents (2009: loss per share
- HKO.6 cents). Profit turnaround for the year was mainly due to
share of profit of HK$35 million of a jointly controlled entity

% f(2009 loss of HK$193 million).
.
- Broking

, The average daily turnover on the local stock exchange was
- up by 16% from HK$58 billion in previous year to HK$67
~ billion during the year and the benchmark Hang Seng Index
'-Tf.-'- (“HSI”) closed at 21,239 at 31st March 2010, a surge of 56% as
- ?Somparcd to the HSI closing at 31st March 2009.

A
: SE
T upturn in both of market turnover and HSI could be
~ attributable to the sustained low interest rates and more stable
! 'rporate earnings which created a positive investment climate
l:_l for the year in addition to the comprehensive stimulus measures
- taken by the US and European governments to stabilise their

£ | b
 financial markets.
¥
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS - continued
Broking — continued

The Group’s commission and fee income from brokerage
segment increased significantly by 36% to HK$128 million this
year (2009: HK$94 million). Among which, the Group’s placing
and underwriting activities delivered a strong performance for
the year, with commission income increasing 75% to HK$21
million (2009:HK$12 million). The division completed
40 placements and underwriting assignments in respect of
convertible notes and fund raising exercises in the equity
markets. The segmental result achieved a profit of HK$69
million (2009: HK$37 million), a surge of 86% compared to last

corresponding year on the back of stronger market sentiment.

Securities margin financing

The Group’s margin lending business remained relatively
stable, interest income from margin financing increased by 2%,
compared a year earlier, to HK$112 million (2009: HK$110
million), contributing a segmental profit of approximately
HK$108 million (2009: HK$106 million). The Group’s margin
loan book at the year end was up by 10% to HK$1,411 million
(2009: HK$1,284 million) compared to a year ago.

Money lending

The money lending vehicle which is mainly engaged in the
provision of consumer and mortgage loans posted a profit of
HKS$24 million this year (2009: HK$25 million).

Corporate finance

We continue to focus on the provision of financial advisory
services to listed issuers. The corporate finance department
completed 16 financial advisory assignments in relation to
Listing Rules and Takeover Code and a profit of HK$2 million
was recorded this year (2009: HK$2 million).

Investments

The segment handles property and other treasury investments
for the Group. For the year ended 31st March, 2010, it recorded
a profit of HK$40 million (2009: loss of HK$186 million)
resulting mainly from an increase in fair value of the financial
instruments and investment properties. As at 31st March, 2010,
the Group was holding a portfolio of securities and convertible
notes with a total value of HK$129 million (2009: HK$84

million).
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@ G CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
. ERBsE

= REVIEW OF OPERATIONS — continued

o Hotel and entertainment
) i"_::l‘ i The hotel and entertainment businesses are mainly formed by
. -
" (i) hotel and spa businesses (conducted via 50% owned Grand

; Waldo Hotel and Carnival Club) and (ii) Macau gaming business

o (conducted via 50% owned Grand Waldo Entertainment). The

= . Group had shared profit of HK$35 million from the hotel and
'_g_-—' spa businesses and there was an unrecognised share of losses of

HK$17 million from the Macau gaming business.

- FINANCIAL REVIEW

The equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted

to HK$3,402 million as at 31st March, 2010, representing an

increase of HK$541 million, or 19% from that of 31st March,

2009. The Group has always maintained a high level of liquid
- assets for operations. The Group’s net current assets as at 31st

March, 2010 amounted to HK$1,950 million (2009: HK$1,589
- million). The Group had no outstanding borrowings as at
31st March, 2010 (2009: nil). As at 31st March, 2010, the
Group had a cash holdings of HK$381 million (2009: HK$95
million). During the year, the Company issued 147,000,000
" new shares of HK$0.10 each at a price of HK$0.55 per share,
~ of which 38,000,000 new shares arose from the exercise of the
- Company’s share options at HK$0.55 per share. The Company

k ~ further issued 300,000,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each at the
~ placement price of HK$0.50 per share. The convertible notes
'.,z issued during the year were converted into 633,600,000 new
'1;3:; shares at the conversion price of HK$0.25.

e |
%
L
a
1
L

The gearing ratio of the Group (total liabilities over total
d *a{ Ilhareholders’ funds) was 0.1 time (2009: 0.1 time) as at 31st
.~ March, 2010.

ey

~ The business activities of the Group are not exposed to material
lﬂuctuations in exchange rates as the majority of the transactions
Ilre denominated in Hong Kong dollars, except for certain
: ransactions carried out in Taiwanese dollar for a subsidiary’s

operation in Taiwan.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

As at 31st March, 2010, the Group had available and unutilised
banking facilities amounting to HK$627 million (2009: HK$557
million). The banking facilities were secured by clients’ pledged
securities, prepaid lease payments and properties as well as

corporate guarantees provided by the Company.

As at 31st March, 2010, the Group and certain parties provided
financial guarantees to banks on a joint and several basis in
respect of banking facilities granted to Great China Company
Limited, the Group’s jointly controlled entity. The maximum
amount that could be required to be paid if the guarantees were
called upon the Group and those parties amounted to HK$1,250
million (2009: HK$1,250 million).

Save as aforesaid, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities at the year end.

As at 31st March, 2010, the Group had capital commitments of

HK$13 million in respect of the acquisition of a yacht.

Charges on Group Assets

Investment properties, buildings and interests in land of the
Group with a carrying amount of HK$145 million (2009:
HK$148 million) were pledged for banking facilities granted to
the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group held 90% interest in More
Profit International Limited (“More Profit”), which in turn held
50% interest in Great China Company Limited. During the
year, the Group acquired the remaining 10% of More Profit,
through the acquisition of the entire share capital of Group
Success International Limited and its shareholders loan at a total
consideration of HK$100 million.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

During the year, the Company issued convertible notes in the
total amount of HK$158,400,000 which were fully converted
into 633,600,000 shares at the conversion price of HK$0.25 per

share. No convertible note was outstanding as at 31st March,
2010.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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= STAFF
Y As at 31st March, 2010, the Group had a total of 45 full time
I‘-.IZ_:_'. employees (2009: 42) and 85 account executives (2009: 88),

28 of whom were also employed as full time employees of
the Group. The Group remunerated employees based on the

e industry practice and individual’s performance.

PROSPECTS

A range of fiscal and monetary stimuli implemented by

governments globally began to gain traction in the second
quarter of 2009, with the Mainland economy leading the
recovery. It is expected that the Hong Kong economy will benefit
from healthy domestic demand and the Mainland’s abundant
liquidity. As such, the Group is optimistic about Hong Kong’s
economic outlook. On the brokerage business, the Group will
strengthen its existing client base by satisfying the needs of
clients. Corporate finance is another business to expand as it can

- bring opportunities to the brokerage business.

: Coping with the fast development in Cotai, Macau and in light
- of the pick up in tourism in Macau, which will in turn have a
~ positive effect on the gaming and hotel industry in Macau and its
economy in the long term, the Group has renovated the Casino
in 2009 to attract more new visitors. In order to maintain its
~ marketing position, it has also planned to refurbish its facilities
in the complex such as to renovate the SPA and relax centre in
~ its amenities building, which is over 330,391 sqf. The Group’s
~ objective is to establish a multi-function family style SPA and
- relax centre in Cotai targeting for the mass market growth in
 the future. Besides, the Group has entered into agreements
- after the end of reporting date as disclosed in note 46. Upon
~completion, the Group will increase its interest in Macau’s hotel

and entertainment businesses from 50% to 65%.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to pursue, on an active and
-‘prudcnt approach, strategic direct investment projects aiming to

‘optimise its return to the Company and its sharecholders.

& URCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
: ‘: HE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

- During the year neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

- purchased, redeemed or sold any of the listed shares of the
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st
March, 2010 with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“CG Code”) as set out by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except for the deviations

summarised as follows:

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (“CEO”) should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not at present have any officer with the title CEO. Mr
Hung Hon Man is the chairman of the Company and has also
carried out the responsibility of CEO. Mr Hung possesses the
essential leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board considers
the present structure is more suitable for the Company because it
can promote the efficient formulation and implementation of the

Company’s strategies.

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
The non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for specific terms but subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company according

to the provisions of the Articles of Association.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The Group’s audited consolidated results for the year ended 31st
March, 2010 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the
Company.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hung Hon Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th July, 2010
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERERE

= DIRECTORS
y ! Executive Directors

) .L:‘:‘ Mr. HUNG Hon Man, aged 55, is the Chairman of the
“n Company and founder of the Group. He is responsible for the

formulation of corporate strategy and the future direction of the
Group. Mr. Hung is also responsible for overseeing the credit
; operation of the Group. Mr. Hung possesses over 16 years of

experience in the securities and real estate industries in Hong

Kong and Taiwan.

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony, aged 64, is the Deputy
Chairman of the Company. He is responsible for the formulation
of corporate strategy and future direction of the Group, and is
responsible for the overall management of the Group. Mr. Cham
possesses over 42 years of experience in the banking, financial,
securities and real estate industries. Before joining the Group in
September, 1991, he held senior executive positions in various

~ international banks.

~ Mr. SHUM Kin Wai, Frankie, aged 64, is the managing
director and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the
formulation of corporate strategy, and for the dealing, settlement
and credit operations of the Group. Mr. Shum has been
responsible for the dealing operations for securities trading in
- four local securities firms during different period since 1971. Mr.

- Shum has over 38 years of experience in the securities business.

~ Mr. WONG Sheung Kwong, aged 61, is a co-founder of the
~ Group. He is responsible for the sales and marketing activities
-':;‘of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 33 years of experience in
- the securities industry. Mr. Wong has been responsible for the
‘dealing operations for securities trading in local securities firm
“since 1971. He had also worked as a dealer for The Chinese Gold
- & Silver Exchange Society.

- Mr. CHENG Wai Ho, aged 47, takes up the management role
‘in the supervision of the human resources department of the
{Group He oversees the overall implementation of procedures to
~ ensure all relevant staff is properly registered under the Securities

- and Futures Ordinance before performing their duties. Prior to

‘I;ommg the Group, he had been a dealing director of three other

Kong Securities Association Limited, the Hong Kong Securities
Institutes, the Institute of Securities Dealers Limited and Hong

ong Securities and Futures Industry Staff Union.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS - continued

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Chun Ning, Wilfred, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 16th May, 2002. He is
currently an executive director of Chong Hing Bank Limited
who is in charge of the securities business of Chong Hing Bank
Limited and an independent non-executive director of S.A.S.
Dragon Holdings Limited and Seamless Green China (Holdings)
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Liu holds a bachelor degree in economics from the University of

Newcastle-upon-Tyne (UK).

Mr. MAN Kong Yui, aged 50, has been involved in the financial
and securities industries for over 30 years and has extensive
experience in bullion, securities, futures and foreign exchange
business with prominent banks and international financial
institutions. Mr. Man holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration from Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
currently a head of financial services of South China Financial
Holding Limited, whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Man is also an independent non-
executive director of Brilliant Arts Multi Media Holding Limited
which is a listed company on Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. KWONG Chi Kit Victor, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 3rd
October, 2005. He is currently the financial controller of
Anwell Technologies Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on Singapore Exchange Limited, Mr. Kwong has more
than 16 years of experience covering auditing, accounting
and financial management in commercial, manufacturing and
public accounting sectors. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited and AnGang Steel Company Limited, companies whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United
Kingdom) and associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor Degree of

Commerce from Curtin University of Technology, Australia.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Hon Sau, Larry, aged 41, is the responsible officer of
Get Nice Futures Co. Ltd. He has over 18 years of experience
in the financial industry with 15 years in securities and futures
and several years in corporate banking. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Finance from California State University,
: Fresno, USA.

Ms. LAM Fung Sin, aged 39, is the qualified accountant of
the Group. She holds a MBA degree from the University of
- Manchester and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of

Certified Accountants.

: ).. in accounting from Curtin University of Technology in Australia
- and a professional diploma in Company Secretaryship and
3 {Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic. He has been

‘an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
&Administrators of England since 1988 and an associate member
~ of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries since 1994.

BNVE:. Yiu has over 13 years of experience in investment banking,
Iorporatc finance advisory work, placing, underwriting and

‘sub-underwriting activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance practices and believes that they are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet public and shareholders’ expectation and comply
with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill

its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”),
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) sets out two levels of corporate governance practices
namely, mandatory code provisions that listed companies must
comply with or explain their non-compliance, and recommended
best practices that listed companies are encouraged to comply
with but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. For
the year ended 31st March, 2010, the Company is in compliance
with the mandatory code provisions of the CG Code except for
certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed later in this

report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group and to assess the achievement of targets periodically set by
the Board.

In addition, the Board has also established Board Committees

and has delegated to these Board Committees various

responsibilities set out in their terms of reference respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises eight Directors, more than one-third
of the Directors are non-executive and independent of the
management. The Board are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’s affair. The Board has a balance of
skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
Group’s businesses. At 31st March, 2010, five of the Directors
are executive, namely Mr Hung Hon Man, Chairman, Mr
Cham Wai Ho Anthony, Vice Chairman, Mr Shum Kin Wai
Frankie, Managing Director, Mr Wong Sheung Kwong and Mr
Cheng Wai Ho, and three of the Directors are independent non-
executive, namely Mr Liu Chun Ning Wilfred, Mr Man Kong
~ Yui and Mr Kwong Chi Kit Victor. Each of Directors’ respective

- biographical derails is set out in the “Biographical Details of

- Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

) ,4 .\?.During the year ended 31st March, 2010, the Board at all time
- met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating
“to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
fDm:c:tors, and complied with the requirement that these
- should include one such director with appropriate professional
. qualifications of accounting or related financial management
- expertise. Both Mr Liu Chun Ning Wilfred and Mr Kwong Chi
Kit Victor have the appropriate professional qualifications and

experience in financial matters required.
=

ursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the Company
-~ ?ms received a written confirmation from each of the independent

o . . . .
non-executive Directors of his independence to the Company.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board.
Each of Directors also does not have any direct or indirect

raterial relationship with the Group.
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ZiP
BOARD PRACTICES EERER Ky
The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately HEGHFERDVETNREGHE > HEFR "__SJ_ a
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development, TT— > plam AL EHERE - SE K "T‘; . |r_"[‘_?
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days MBEERE -MEEFGRATHES 28 : ‘;"‘7. i
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all HREHGEERD TIRER > DIERA I._t r.«r'_
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings HHRETMZ BT - TAEHES T gR | *.B*

adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is Vi B > B Ak HIE L d &
addressed to the Board. All Directors have access to board HeER A EEYAEAMES & XL - &
paper and related materials, and are provided with adequate 1 R A BB ORL - I g SR R B il et
information which enable the Board to make an informed HRGUMEEHEF TR wE N E

decision on the matters to be discussed and considered at the FEH MG RE - SR g ol beh A H
Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the R 5 M A7 o AT o] 25 2 1T K 5F 0 A 2L
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable AT o] 5 P IR B A ] o 3 6 B sk RO 8% o

time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free By MR PR AR > 55 0] i T B IRF B IRF I 1
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain B EWI RIOE S ER > ERE

further information, when required and the Directors can obtain WML HEALZER BAAAS
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense. Al AT e '
During the year ended 31st March, 2010, 18 Board meetings W E _F-FFE=H =T —HILFE z

have been held. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as HREGET P \REFGFR -EH 2N '. i,
follows: R T g

Number of Board meeting attended/
Number of Board meeting held

HEESEEBIRE BT CESESENE

Audit Nomination Remuneration _{,17

L
Board committee committee committee

EE® FHEEe® RE4ZE85f€ FHEEE

Executive Directors BITES:

Mr Hung Hon Man (Chairman) PO SCEAE (F ) 18/18 0/2 0/2
Mr Cham Wai Ho Anthony {H S S 18/18 0/2 0/2
Mr Shum Kin Wai Frankie SRRt 9/18 0/2 0/2
Mr. Wong Sheung Kwong EMILEA 11/18 0/2 0/2
Mr Cheng Wai Ho W AR S 11/18 0/2 0/2

Independent non-Executive Directors & VFHTEE:

Mr Liu Chun Ning Wilfred Bk g e 5/18 1/2 1/2

Mr Chung Wai Keung (Note) B AR e (W) 1/18 1/2 1/2

Mr Man Kong Yui ST 55 A4 6/18 212 212

Mr Kwong Chi Kit Victor B S A 5/18 212 212

Note:  Mr. Chung Wai Keung resigned as independent non-executive Mzt - s E D —FEFILETHA L P
Director on 19th October, 2009. BHAL W SL AT HE S -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years and will continue thereafter unless and until terminated
o by cither party giving not less than three months’ prior notice
in writing to the other. With the exception of Mr Hung Hon
Man as the Chairman of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement from office by the rotation at each annual
general meeting as required by the Articles of Association of the

= Company (“Articles of Association”).

- CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors
- should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
~ The non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
~ for specific terms but subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company according
~ to the provisions of the Articles of Association.

( '!

‘According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
- l:_meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
3 4being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest one-third) should retire from office by

- rotation. Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr
Cheng Wai Ho, Mr Liu Chun Ning Wilfred, Mr Man Kong Yui
d Mr Kwong Chi Kit Victor will retire by rotation and, being
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiring
by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31st March, 2010.

On 8th February, 2010, the Company has adopted written
guidelines, “ Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees”, on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees who are likely to be
in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the

Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (“CEO”) should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not at present have any officer with the title CEO, Mr
Hung Hon Man is the chairman of the Company and has also
carried out the responsibility of CEO. Mr Hung possesses the
essential leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board considers
the present structure is more suitable to the Company because it
can promote the efficient formulation and implementation of the

Company’s strategies.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee was established to make
recommendations for all appointment, re-designation and re-
appointment of Directors to the Board. It comprises three
members, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr Liu Chun Ning Wilfred, Mr Man Kong Yui and Mr
Kwong Chi Kit Victor.
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= COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination committee — continued
) i"_::l- s The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining
ol e
B | the independence of each Director and conducting formal
e assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and
-l
=

the contribution of each Director to the effectiveness of the

Board. In evaluating the Board’s performance, the Nomination

Committee considers a number of factors, including those set out
in the CG Code.

\ The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to review
the structure, size and composition of the existing Board, and to
recommend to the Board that the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board

members and senior staffs of the Company.

 The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee,
on named basis, at committee meetings during the year is set out

~ in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

Remuneration committee

- The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
~ independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr Liu Chun
Ning Wilfred, Mr Man Kong Yui and Mr Kwong Chi Kit
- Victor.

~ The duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
- recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
~ and structure of the Directors and senior management,
-h"approving the remuneration, determining the remuneration
- packages of all Directors and senior management and approving
,-|~'thc compensation to Directors and senior management on
“termination or dismissal provided that no Director was involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration. Details of the amount
of Directors’ emoluments during the financial year ended 31st

~ March, 2010 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial

d_hc emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
‘_.‘ the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The

emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued
Audit committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Mr Liu Chun Ning Wilfred, Mr Man Kong Yui and Mr
Kwong Chi Kit Victor, all of whom are not involved in the day-

to-day management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a
year. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Company’s financial information (including the Company’s
financial statements, annual reports, interim reports and major
comments on financial reporting contained in the financial
statements and reports), examining and studying the Company’s
financial reporting system and procedures for internal
supervision and control, and making recommendations to the
Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors

and audit fee etc.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings, during which the annual report for the year ended 31st
March, 2009 and the interim report for the six months ended 30
September 2009 were reviewed. Please refer to the table set out
in the section “Board Practices” of this report for the attendance

record of individual Audit Committee members.

Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st March, 2010.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants
(“Deloitte”), be nominated for re-appointment as external
auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2010, the Directors
- have selected suitable accounting policies and have applied
- them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
~ which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
 reasonable, and have prepared the financial statements on a going

[& - concern basis.
& ”.
= Yl a

~ AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
.” For the year ended 31st March, 2010, Deloitte, the external
A

1

auditor of the Group, provided the following services to the

' B Giroup:
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HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

THExT T T

‘__‘- udit services % RS 2,750 1,430
on-audit and taxation services A% A A 2 MBS B B %5 IR 5 194 80
HEr 2,944 1,510
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible to safeguard the shareholder’s
investment and the Group’s assets as well as to achieve the
objectives of the Group. Thus, a comprehensive internal control
system is established and implemented throughout the Group
during the year to meet the Group’s particular needs and the
risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or

loss.

The Directors confirm that they have reviewed the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2010 and that they
consider that such system is reasonably effective and adequate.
The review covered all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and the risk management
function as well as the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial

reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’
relationship with the Company’s shareholders, the Company
has established various channels of communications with its
shareholders such as publication of interim and annual reports,
press release and announcement of the latest development of
the Company in a timely manner. The annual general meeting
provides an opportunity for sharcholders to exchange views
with the Board. The Chairman as well as chairmen of different
committees are available to answer shareholders’ questions.
Moreover, resolutions are proposed at annual general meeting
on each substantially separate issue, including the election
of individual Directors. In addition, details of the proposed

resolutions are set out in the circular.

The financial and other information relating to the
Group has been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website

(www.getnice.com.hk).
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Tt The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2010.

options broking, securities margin financing, money lending,

o 17

~ PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

'T'-_—'J = The Company is an investment holding company. The
= principal activities of the Group are (i) provision of financial
ﬁ— services, including securities dealing and broking, futures and

corporate finance services, property development and holding
and investment in financial instruments; (ii) property holding,
hotel operation and provision of gaming-related marketing and
administration of business promotion services through its 50%
owned jointly controlled entities. Particulars of the Company’s
jointly controlled entities and subsidiaries are set out in notes 22

and 48 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

~ RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2010

~ are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on page 32.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share amounting to
~ HKS$39,115,000 in aggregate was paid during the year. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.01 per share to the sharcholders on the register of
- members on 23rd August, 2010.

t
-':_: FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

@ . e
A summary of the audited results and the assets and liabilities

Fl I_ ROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
NVESTMENT PROPERTIES

etails of movements during the year in the property and
‘equipment, and investment properties of the Group are set out
~ in notes 18 and 19 respectively to the consolidated financial

. statements.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

During the year, the Company issued convertible notes in the
total amount of HK$158,400,000 which were all fully converted
into 633,600,000 shares at the conversion price of HK$0.25 per
share. No convertible note was outstanding as at year ended 31st
March, 2010. Details of convertible notes are set out in note 37

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

36.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31st March, 2010, the reserves of the Company available

for distribution to sharecholders were approximately
HK$2,390,700,000, which comprised the share premium, special

reserve and retained profits.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman)

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (Managing Director)
Mr. Wong Sheung Kwong

Mr. Cheng Wai Ho

Independent non-executive directors:

M:r. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred

Mr. Man Kong Yui

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor

Mr. Chung Wai Keung (resigned on 19th October, 2009)

In accordance with the corporate governance code and the
provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Cheng
Wai Ho, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Man Kong Yui and
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor will retire by rotation and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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= DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract

with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years

commencing from Ist April, 2002 and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other, which notice shall not expire

until after the fixed term.

e term of office of each non-executive director is for the
The t f offi f each tive direct for th
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
'_ At 31st March, 2010, the interests of the directors and their

associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
- corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
~ Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
- Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company

Name of director Capacity
EEpS EEtE

Mr. Hung Hon Man Interest of controlled entity (note)

HE A XYEHM ML (L)

EECBRBEYN

A UAT S HLAC N A TS 1B E A A
SHEZRBEH ZERHR EFE
POA— HREAEN WA EE T
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Bk 1 SC I 6 8 4 A1 > B M T B RO 4R R
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S I AE N SR AR ik B BB BR AN TR —
A R R 1 2 RS A A

EEZROER

BCE-FEZA =4 —H o REGER R
W B WRG) (3827 J W B R )) 5352004
O RV T A AE 9B RC A B a Sk BAR 98 < B i
O3 F) AT RE IR 58 B AR HE ST AL ([ B e
SR ZHR & AR 8w S A S S o Pl
R (THE A |) 2 i - 4% 38 3 %%
W BN T B A AR A ) R HLA T 3 Y
e pr ME £ I T

1. REAQTESREEIELEBRZH
-}

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital

shares held of the Company
e ®T MHEAQASHT
EERHAE RAEzEZ

1,162,948,583 27.37%

Note:  Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
1,162,948,583 ordinary shares of the Company which
are held by Honeylink Agents Limited (“Honeylink”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

At W SCEAE WA S i Honeylink
Agents Limited ([ Honeylink ) #4652
1,162,948,583 B 7% 2 i) - 3 i v i A1
HE4R © Honeylink £ i 9% J& B 20 #f & 51
M or 2 AR o HA e BT
Al U SO A A A -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
— continued

2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE F

i

EECRER & L
o = "|
d _c.r,_ -
2 REAAZAWBAALFREAR
AR([#FRESF]) 2EREELIER » ‘; 1
CEREMELRZHA i i;_
ek 77
Percentage d i

Number of of the issued b e o
non-voting non-voting v '. 1
deferred deferred share o

Name of Director Capacity shares* held of GNS

HEFRES

FEERERE CRTERERE

Esns EEME EZERBE EZER<BIL

Mr. Hung Hon Man Beneficial owner 36,000,000 90%
3 B e Ha A A

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Beneficial owner 4,000,000 10%
2R SEE Ha A A

40,000,000 100%

* The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to - I 450 M A0 AE T T R L R RE U Ex_:r

dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2010, none of the
directors nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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'.‘_—_\'- ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND OPTIONS

the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

Y 'L‘:j At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
B subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
‘_-;A ol ) of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition

N f-' of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

- . corporate and none of the directors, their spouses or children

i-_;j:_l under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares of

'” e

- CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year, the Group received commission and
interest of approximately HK$327,000 from Messrs. Shum
Kin Wai, Frankie, Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Cheng Wai
Ho, Wong Sheung Kwong and their associates.

During the year, the Group received commission of
approximately HK$338,000 from Honeylink, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

During the year, the Group received interest income of
approximately HK$128,000 from Messrs. Wong Sheung
Kwong, Cheng Wai Ho and their associates.

In 2006, an option agreement was made between the
Company and Honeylink, in connection with the granting
by the Company to Honeylink an option to subscribe
for up to 400,000,000 new shares at the exercise price
of HK$0.68 per share (if exercised within twelve months
from the date of grant), HK$0.70 per share (if exercised
within twelve months from the first anniversary of the date
of grant) or HK$0.72 per share (if exercised within twelve
months from second anniversary of the date of grant).
None of the share options was exercised during the year and
231,588,236 outstanding options were expired on 6th June,
2009.

- Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the
ompany or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a

‘director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly

BEROKRBREZZH
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2010, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that the following shareholder had an interest of 5% or
more in the issued share capital of the Company and this interest
represents long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company.

Name Capacity
=1 REEME
Honeylink Beneficial owner

A A

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

FERR

MRoFE-FE=ZA=+—H  REEHE I
B ERBIZE3360% » AN R THiIfF 2 E8
R B T R Bk > DA IRORBER AN
A 2 BT AR 5%k DA b 2 HE 4 T R AR
Ty 7% e g I TR (0.1 T 48 i 2 0P AT e

Percentage

Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
shares held of the company
e ®T MHEAQRASHET
EBERHA BRAzBDE
1,162,948,583 27.37%

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share

capital of the Company at 31st March, 2010.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2010, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31st March, 2010, the Group’s turnover

attributed to the five largest customers accounted for less than

30% of the Group’s total turnover.

'; The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the
principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

- The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
- throughout the year ended 31st March, 2010.

- DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
~ amounting to HK$30,000

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Code on

-

-

l:_Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the

MOLUMENT POLICY
i _I{- emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

VENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

- Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period

are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred,
Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor for the
year ended 31st March, 2010 and as at the date of this report,
the Company still considers the Independent Non-executive

Directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Hon Man
Chairman

14th July, 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
9B TR BN R &

- Deloitte.
- =E

o | TO THE MEMBERS OF GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
! (incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliry)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Get

Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 32 to
135, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
i position as at 31st March, 2010, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial

statements

. The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong

- Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure

- requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This

responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining

- internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and

. fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that

,“' are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

 error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;

~and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

~ circumstances.

‘Auditor’s responsibility
‘Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
[ﬂnancial statements based on our audit and to report our

- opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.

- any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
 our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

easonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibility — continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
March, 2010 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

14th July, 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ZEEEmKER

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_T-TF-A=-+—HLFE

‘ i Staff costs

1)/ entities

2010 2009
—g-%FE | —EEAE
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
i 2 FHRx T
Revenue W 7 271,723 246,614
Other operating income A A 9a 16,105 10,245
Other gains and losses oA i A B e 18 9b 23,437 5,479
Depreciation 8 (4,426) (4,540)
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEAS A B ROE < S
payments (2,450) (2,450)
Commission expenses 1 4 B S (29,959) (25,814)
B T A 11 (15,012) (15,481)
Other operating expenses At 45 98 B 52 (29,953) (38,048)
Convertible note redemption loss i [ T e R SRR 2 e 1R 37 - (4,999)
Fair value gain on derivatives firtE THZ N R fE i 36 — 13,653
Share of result of jointly controlled 4 {5 3 [R] 44 ] ‘B{ #6 3 4%
22 35,386 (193,439)
Finance costs il A 10 (3,405) (7,096)
Profit (loss) before taxation A 1 e A (5 48) 12 261,446 (15,876)
Taxation B IH 14 (36,922) (24,762)
Profit (loss) for the year A R (B 1R) 224,524 (40,638)
Other comprehensive income At 2 T AR
Exchange difference arising on MEEAZ R
translation (96) 122
(Deficit) surplus on revaluation YA (4t &k
of properties 18 (13) 1,830
Deferred tax asset (liability) arising Yy EE A E R R A
on revaluation of properties FIHE E (A fR) 38 3 (282)
4 Other comprehensive income AR AR JBE 2 H A 2 T A 4R
for the year (106) 1,670
Total comprehensive income AAE B 22 A TH YR i AR AR
224,418 (38,968)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HeEEElim=R

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

2010 2009
—e-BF | “BELE
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
i FHET Tt
Profit (loss) for the year DA N B A A 45 3
attributable to: i A (5 18) -
Owners of the Company Z/NEIE XN 224,212 (19,082)
Minority interests D BB AR B 312 (21,556)
‘I‘-
224,524 (40,638) =
Total comprehensive income DU AL EAG A TH
attributable to: i £ HEAH -
Owners of the Company RNFHEA N 224,106 (17,412)
Minority interests D BB £ 312 (21,556)
\
224,418 (38,968) ‘
Earnings (loss) per share B A (E1E) 16 :
— Basic — R HKG6.06 centsEAll | HK(0.60) centsits i
— Diluted — e v HKG.04 cents#EAll | HK(0.60) centsits i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SZEMBRRE

At 31st March, 2010

RZZT—ZTF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—s-8F T NE
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
i: FHET Tt
Non-current assets I i B &
Prepaid lease payments AR B OE 17 88,881 91,331
Property and equipment L EN & ] 18 30,514 34,586
Investment properties G 19 80,052 74,600
Intangible assets Y A 20 8,504 8,004
Goodwill i 21 15,441 15,441
Interests in jointly controlled e 7] 42 ] T B 2 RE AR
entities 22 707,920 665,103
Other assets FHoAh & 24 2,977 4,386
Amounts due from jointly S [7] 422 i B 8 KK
controlled entities 25 406,487 226,594
Loan receivable ST B R 26 - 100,000
Loans and advances S e T 27 18,330 23,044
Deposit & 28 12,924 50,000
Investments in securities AR RE 31 84,829 =
1,456,859 1,293,089
Current assets L E
Accounts receivable ARG W e T 29 1,478,668 1,348,051
Loans and advances B R B AR 27 101,927 276,540
Prepaid lease payments T A 8 FKOH 17 2,450 2,450
Properties under development FrEBERTYE
for sale 30 42,239 42,082
Prepayments, deposits and other TN IE - da K
receivables At B SRR TR 3,660 3,236
Taxation recoverable G 567 431
Investments in securities g 31 43,766 84,000
Bank balances — client accounts WITHEGR— K P IRE 32 224,690 140,691
Bank balances — general accounts TR — — RIRF
and cash &K 33 380,690 94,834
2,278,657 1,992,315

L3 éET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##F#ERBR L =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEMBIRAR

At 31st March, 2010
R-ZE—ZEF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—s-%FE | —EEAE
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHET T
Current liabilities i B A
Accounts payable JRE A R TE 34 284,950 296,467
Accrued charges and other JE w2 R K HoAh
accounts payable JE AT B T 12,427 11,170
Amounts due to minority R SRR R I
shareholders 35 17,000 88,104
Taxation payable JRE A Bt TH 14,778 7,193 il
B
g BE
329,155 402,934 P
S el
T
Net current assets B A 1,949,502 1,589,381 A ‘”"1 \
Total assets less current liabilities AU I I B B [ 3,406,361 2,882,470 W\
Non-current liability I i B A iR
Deferred tax liabilities A% S B TH B 38 4,858 3,769
Net assets & E 3,401,503 2,878,701
Capital and reserves AR I i
Share capital Je A 39 424,948 316,888
Reserves it # 2,976,555 2,543,880
Equity attributable to owners of AN FIHEA N AL HE 25
the Company 3,401,503 2,860,768
Minority interests D BB R HE 45 - 17,933
Total equity MR 3,401,503 2,878,701

B EEBISE L B HEREE AR
L 10 H A AR - I
MR EEREEE

The financial statements on pages 32 to 135 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14th July, 2010
and are signed on its behalf by:

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

Hung Hon Man Cham Wai Ho, Anthony
SHE & B &
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
HH #HF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GCEERmBEFR

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_T-—ZTF=-A=1+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LG PN, 1
Convertible  Properties
Share Special  note equity revaluation Share option  Translation  Retained Minority
- Share capital  premium reserve reserve reserve feserve reserve profits Total interests Total
TAREE NXER YRR
ke RHaER HHRG BREE fif BRERE EXRR REER A% i A%
Notes HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i T  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx TEx TEx
: (Note)
: )
. 3 Balances at Ist April, 2008 R=FF G
) WA~ R &k 316888 1914904 123337 7729 - - - GILTL 29744 39489 3013918
i
Ny Loss for the year KRGS - - - = = = - (908)  (908) (L6 (4039)
e
A '.l:"_u - Other comprehensive income 44 2 Jfy 2
— .;'b- fi . for the year g
- Exchange difference arising ~ HSEE £ Z [E 5L
on transhtion 5 - - - - - - 122 - 122 - 12
Surplus on revaluation of ~ HIEE (R R
properties = = = = 1,830 = = = 1,830 = 1,830
Deferred tax liability PEEMELZ
arising on revaluation BEREAR
of properties - - - = (282) = = = (282) = (282)
€ - - - - 1,548 - 122 - 1,670 - 1,670
Total comprehensive income  Z:4F 2 4 [
for the year I A% - - - - 1,548 - 120 (1908) (17412 (1556 (38968)
Dividends recognised s~ BERMEARZ S
distribution 15 - - - = = = - (95066 (95,066) - (95000
Release from redemption of [l B b
convertible note 1T 84 i 37(ii) = = - (7,729) = = = 6,546 (1,183) = (1,183)
Balances at 315t March, 2009 R=FFfEZN
=t-HZkR 316,888 1914904 123337 - 1548 - 12 503969 2860768 1793 2878701
~ Drofit for the year AR - - - - = = - 4N 240 312 22454
Other comprehensive income  A4F [ 2 o 2
for the year g
Exchange difference arising S84 Z [E %
/ on translation R = = = = = - (96) - (%) - (%)
~ Deficicon revaluation of HEST 3
X properties - - = = (13) = = = (13) = (13)
Reversal of deferred tax WEEREEEZ
liabilicies arising on BIERBER
revaluation of propercies 1B - - - - 3 - - - 3 = 3
- - - - (10) - (96) - (106) - (106)
::Tota] comprehensive income  A4E 2 2 A&
k- - - - - (10) - (06 24212 24106 30 24418

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED & 1F#2RAE R A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEEmBER

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRERAEL
Convertible ~ Properties
Share Special note equity revaluation Share option Translation  Retained Minority
Share capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests Total
TRERRE NRER YRR

Ba ROERE HAEE  REEG B BREGE ERGG REEN £ Rt RE
Nows ~ HKSO000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Wi TEx  FEx  TEx  TEx T Téx TEx fEx Tk FE TEx

(Note)
(3t

Dividends recognised s~ BERMEARZ S

distribution 15 - - - - = = - (77,140) (77,140) - (77,140)
Dividends paid to minority £ ff O #H K

interests [ 2vdid) - - = = = = = = = (106) (106) .
Iswe of comeriblenotes — EFTTHIERE  370) . . X ) . . . - BS - BS w»
Issue of shares upon BREdES S ' ‘

conversion of convertible ATt <

notes 370) 63,360 96,245 - (3530) = = = - 12430 - 124300 L
Tssue of shares by placements HREMETRE 39 40900 164954 - - - 4096 - - 209950 - 209950 (™
Share options granted EREZERE 410) - - - - - 3314 = = 3,314 = 3314
Issue of shares on exercise of [ R AE A ff

share options Mkl 3 3800 21,19 - - - (40) - - 200 - 2090
Acquisition of addicional SR —TIHE A

interest in a subsidiary ba 2] 40 - - - - - - = - - (18,139) (18,139)
Balances at 31t March, 2010 =% —F%E=f

=t-HZER 424948 2,197,299 123,337 - 1,538 3314 26 051,041 3,401,503 - 3,401,503

Note: Bt -
The special reserve of the Group arose as a result of the group VN =l R = DR RPN - e = St S i) = B nvay
reorganisation (“Reorganisation”) completed on 16th May, 2002, which Aoz EBEH (TEHD TEE FHEE
principally involved the exchange of shares of the Company with all the W M PAZR 2 ) [ A7 384 Ger Nice Incorporated 2 4%
issued share capital of Get Nice Incorporated. The derails are set out in e BATIRA s AR NFLE BE _4F
the prospectus dated 24th May, 2002 issued by the Company. AH V0 H R B R R o
The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value R A A A A SR B R 2 ) Hﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁ&*%ﬁ%ﬁ’
of the shares of the subsidiaries together with the net book value of a A2 HRTHEME (B R A /i i & B &A1)
subordinated loan capitalised at the date on which they were acquired BRLAS N \) A AN w) e Ay b T AT S AR H%Elli
by the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁ—’ T 2 Wy Th (L 2 TR R 2= 8 > DA S T i i
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to J& N F 2 555 IO E 42 > BLGet Nice Incorporated
the listing of the Company’s shares, as well as the difference between TEAR S ) Ay T R AT T A IRE A A B T AT
the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the acquired subsidiaries and 2 A5y TR EL Y 25 4 ©

the nominal value of the Get Nice Incorporated’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RER AT Annual Report 2010 3




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HERERER

Fortheyearended 31st March, 2010

BE-—T-TFE-A-fAILFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —EEZNE
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Wt FHET T
Operating activities K W
Profit (loss) before taxation Bl H s A (B548) 261,446 (15,876)
Adjustments for: KE R R
Share of result of jointly A5 3 [7] 422 1) 2 B
controlled entities ES (35,386) 193,439
[ Depreciation e 4,426 4,540
A Release from prepaid lease SREEDRIN-E O N
i~ payments 2,450 2,450
Surplus on revaluation of EN & LR
property and equipment - (168)
Impairment loss in respect of & T & 55 2 W E R
club membership 400 -
Net impairment loss in respect Bk B BGR Z E
of loans and advances Jis 18 5 (E 1,056 11,976
Reversal of impairment loss on BB REEEES
loans to securities margin B Z B AE e 1R
clients (4,127) -
Share-based payment expenses DA SZ A 2 32t 3,314 =
Fair value (gain) loss on &Y N E
investment properties (W) 518 (8,604) 4,595
Interest expenses F B S 3,128 6,852
Interest income B A (155,191) (162,258)
Convertible note redemption 1o ] e R SRR
loss 18 37 - 4,999
Fair value gain on derivatives i TRZ A AME
e g - (13,653)
Gain on disposal of property W) 2 K S 2
and equipment Wi i (1) (50)
Fair value gain on financial N SO AR A 4 % e 2
assets at fair value through ZEMEER
profit or loss VAL & (12,048) (9,974)
?' ‘Operating cash flows before BEESEHAZ
~ movements in working capital REE Bl & 60,863 26,872
- (Increase) decrease in accounts JRE A B TEL (3% 1) ek 2D
" receivable (126,490) 571,272
‘['Decrease (increase) in loans and B R B D (3 m)
i d’. advances 178,271 (157,220)
Increase in properties under T 6 R vh W SE 8
development for sale (157) (1,545)
~ Increase in prepayments, deposits TS RIE e X H A
and other receivables JARE WA K I 3 (424) (642)

. "-GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##F1ZIRBRA 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HFEBRERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

2010 2009
—s-%FE | —EEAE
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
W FHET Tt
Decrease (increase) in financial assets 20 JH A f{EE & 2 & @
classified as held for trading BRE A () 1,571 (17,146)
(Increase) decrease in bank balances  $RAT4ER— &K IRF
— client accounts (Hm) J (83,999) 167,154
Decrease in accounts payable JHREASF B T i 20 (11,517) (188,832)
Increase (decrease) in accrued charges JRE T 22 P B L Ath 8 A AR TE
and other accounts payable W (3 ) 1,257 (3,785)
Cash generated from operations s TS 4 19,375 396,128
Interest income received C RLE A 139,121 152,282
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid E A& R B (28,379) (65,751)
Net cash from operating activities KW T 3 Bl 130,117 482,659
Investing activities S EX
Purchase of financial assets W E R E Bk A A
designated as at fair value AR A ERR 2 4
through profit or loss & E (82,327) (56,880)
Redemption of financial assets B [l 46 € By 4 A Aol
designated as at fair value B A e R 2 4
through profit or loss & E 48,885 -
Payment for acquisition of W i Y B 2 ) 22 Ak
a subsidiary 40 (50,000) =
Proceeds on disposal of property Y E R R 2
and equipment JIT 15 KA 1 84
Proceeds on disposal of investment HEREYEZ
properties BT A% K E 5,780 7,250
Purchase of club membership YN (900) -
Decrease in other assets HCAth 5 2 WD 1,409 -
Purchase of property and W) 26 KA
equipment (367) (1,310)
Purchase of investment properties R G - (40,397)
Advance to jointly controlled 1] & [R] 2 1 T A K
entities (64,500) (7,250)
Deposit for acquisition of a yacht Hi ' — i M 2 i< 28 (12,924) —
Deposit for acquisition of Wi Ji B B s W) 2 4 4
a subsidiary 28 - (50,000)
Increase in loan receivable B Wi 5 K 1 26 - (100,000)
Net cash used in investing activities ¢ & ZEH; it Fl 2 1F Bl & (154,943) (248,503)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HERERER

Fortheyearended 31st March, 2010

BE-—T-TFE-A-fAILFE

2010 2009
—g-%FE | —EEAE
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
i: FHET Tt
Financing activities il 5 S5
Increase in amounts due to IR D B R R 1
minority shareholders 3,326 4,638
Proceeds on issue of shares by e AT B 2
placements JIT 45 3 H 39 209,950 —
Proceeds on issue of convertible BT R EE
notes Pt % 3 A 37(i) 158,400 -
Proceeds on issue of shares on T i e W A AT ol
exercise of share options AT By 2
P 45 33 5 39(a) 20,900 -
Bank loans raised T ERAT B K 579,000 212,000
Interest paid e At F E\ (1,923) (6,154)
Dividends paid e E 15 (77,140) (95,066)
Dividends paid to minority e D HRR 2 R
shareholders (106) =
Repayment of bank loans B 7% SR AT B K (579,000) (345,000)
Redemption of convertible notes HEf [ ] f % 22 - (100,000)
Net cash from (used in) financing RlE ST A ()
activities Z FB 313,407 (329,582)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and BHe kB E&EHETEH
cash equivalents G () 288,581 (95,426)
Effect of foreign exchange rate SN HE R SR By 2 B
changes (2,725) 3,624
Cash and cash equivalents at FENB & LB &5 HE
beginning of the year HH 94,834 186,636
Cash and cash equivalents at FERBERBRESME
end of the year HH 380,690 94,834
- Represented by: 2
- Bank balances — general accounts SATH B — — RIEF 380,646 94,669
Cash B4 44 165
380,690 94,834

~ GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #5#F12 B R A F
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1.

i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the corporate

information of the annual report.

The principal activity of Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note

48.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior

accounting periods.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised in 2007) Presentation of financial
statements

HKAS 1 (2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements)
and changes in the format and content of the financial

statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

—REE

AN FRBEHSHE QA EERE
(— AN — LB = BE A& REHT)
R A R R FR AR T s
B A R R BT

AN T e R R S
Ho Ak B R AN A [ 2> 7 BB AP R

J& 23 7] 2 B O M 48

AN S H A F (TSR H ) 2 457
B IR LA R 2 Th e B T
23 -

P& PR #7 5] R ARAE BT B 78 B 35 3R
=2 A

A T P A A 2 R T 22 TH ol 7 s R
fl 2 & AR 2R AT R AC A T HE AN~ B
R M R ([OR AT B K846 T 7 ok A 5 ik
HHER) o BR R SCHTA E Ah o R AR
T L KEAE T A S 5 i o A ) 3 R 4R
il 2R DLLE € w3 ] 2 A5 BB
ERR N

RERIREBECHIAREEBITE
78 Bt 15 8 o 22 A

EROH BB IS (R-FELFME

B #HEZ 25

FIE OIS (CFF L) 5IAL S

fitr w5 2 B (RLAR BRI K 24 H)
Fe BA w5 ik 2 A XA 2 2 84 ) -

“%15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERFE RLIEETE BB KIR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS - continued

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure only — continued

HKFRS 8 Operating segments
HKEFRS 8 is a disclosure standard. The adoption has

not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable

segments.

Improving disclosures about financial instruments

(amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value.
The amendments also expand and amend the disclosures
required in relation to liquidity risk. The Group has
not provided comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the transitional provision set

out in the amendments.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective, and are relevant to the

operations of the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of
improvements to HKFRSs 2008'

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010°
HKAS 24 (Revised)

Related party disclosures”

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial
statements'

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of rights issues’

HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible hedged items'

© GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED &1 ERERA S

HER -

HE2IREBEZHAIREBTE
BMEHREED &
BB BEHEERE8H EE T
7 o S i Y ) 5 8 B — T 9 o e
SUJ o 7 42 ) 2 (R 2 R A 1 T VEE R T
HH B HT B ITHB o

BOER & LA W5 (B R
LG 7w TR HEEZ )
A A R HE R BB 7 R B RTIR T
ZE DA 2% Fe MR R B A e TR A
BB A RAERH R Z W ER - S E BT IN
WK Be A w1 T 800 Wi 8 4 Jl e 2 it
Z PR o AEEAMREZF BT TR
3 I A RE T 7 AR R AR Y R 48
RO R -

A B2 1 7 41 £ LR T T B0 2 A L 14
o A2 T B A S A T 2 B RT e
REAERTHER ~ AT BRe R

FEMHRASEN  FEMHREENSSTEL

(f3T) B3l ER-FRNERHE
BB R 2 O A
— b
FERHEREEN  CETAEFEHBREEN
(f3T) 2
FEMHRAEN  —F-TEFEMH RS R
() 2
FiEaHEl S AREALEE
(#HT)

FiE GRS e kB RE
(D)
FiE G EAERE B R

(i)
ik At AR A EREMAR"
(1)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR RMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BAMTREEBITETBHER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER &
STANDARDS - continued
HKEFRS 1 (Amendment) ~ Additional exemptions for first-time FEMBERERN  FRERZEIH S
adoprers’* F19E (BAT)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) ~ Limited exemption from comparative BB IREEN  FRE RN R A IS
HKERS 7 disclosures for first-time 15 (B AR 72 B
adopters® Ry T B R
HKEFRS 2 (Amendment) ~ Group cash-settled share-based payment B HREEN SRS SH RO
transactions’ 258 (B3] 5
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations' FisHBREEl  ERAH
3% (BT
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments® FEMBEREEN  SRTA
9% £
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding it (ABHHRE REESERZBMNTE )
(Amendment) requirement’ RARRZEE) . i
— A 145
(f3T)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners' Fib (RBEKRE WG ADRERSERE
EHRRZAE)
—R RRI7H
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity Fik (AREHERE UBRATAERSHA RS
instruments’® RARRZHE)
— e BH19%
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, . REEENFEELH — BB R
2009. AT T A 5
’ Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning 2 FEBFIN ERZINFELH —H kT
on or after Ist July, 2009 and 1st January, 2010, as TR~ —H (W) s B
appropriate. I 2 4 A TR A2 L o
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, g WoF—FFEELH —H K EF——F
2010 and 1st January, 2011, as appropriate. —H— B () sCH AR B 4G 2 4
A A A
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist 4 N —FFE-H NS HEHRZ
January, 2010. 4 B2 R AR o ‘_
0 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 5 MNEFE—FFH —HEH B R
February, 2010. 4 B2 R AR o
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, J WoF—FEELA - HRHERMRZ
2010. AU TR A 5 -
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist 4 NoF——F—H A HEHGEZ
January, 2011. A JBE 40 H] AR 5 =N
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 8 NEFE—=F—H—-H B RZ y
January, 2013. 4 B2 R AR o '

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED 4R ER AT Annual Report 2010 3% %




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERFE RLIEETE BB KIR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS - continued

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and will be effective from Ist January,
2013, with earlier application permitted. The Standard
requires all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” to be measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might
affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s

financial assets.

HKAS 27 (Revised in 2008) “Consolidated and separate
financial statements” will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after Ist July, 2009. Under the HKAS
27 (Revised in 2008), increases or decreases in ownership
interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are dealt with in
equity and attributed to the owners of the parent, with
no impact on goodwill or profit or loss. When control of
a subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction, event or
other circumstance, HKAS 27 (Revised in 2008) requires
that the Group derecognise all assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests at their carrying amounts. Any retained
interest in the former subsidiary is recognised at its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss (see below
for details). The adoption of HKAS 27 (Revised in 2008)
might have impact on the consolidated financial statements
as the Group had entered into certain agreements after the

reporting period as disclosed in note 46.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS - continued
HKFRS 3 (Revised in 2008) “Business combinations”

will be applied for which the acquisition date is in annual
reporting periods beginning or after 1st July, 2009. The
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised in 2008)

includes:

*  to allow a choice on a transaction-by-transaction basis
for the measurement of non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ share
of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
acquiree. Consequently, the goodwill recognised in
respect of that acquisition reflects the impact of the
difference between the fair value of the non-controlling
interests and their share of the fair value of the

identifiable net assets of the acquiree;

*  to change the recognition and subsequent accounting
requirements for contingent consideration. Under
the previous version of the standard, contingent
consideration was recognised at the acquisition date
only if payment of the contingent consideration
was probable and it could be measured reliably;
any subsequent adjustments to the contingent
consideration were recognised against goodwill.
Under the revised standard, contingent consideration
is measured at fair value at the acquisition date;
subsequent adjustments to the consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a

liability are recognised in profit or loss;

*  where the business combination in effect settles a
pre-existing relationship between the Group and the
acquiree, to require the recognition of a settlement
gain or loss; and to require acquisition-related costs
to be accounted for separately from the business
combination, generally leading to those costs being
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred,
whereas previously they were accounted for as part of

the cost of the acquisition.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

e

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-ZF=ZF=+—HILEE

P& PR 375 R ARAE BT & 78 B 35 3
HER -

o B A R RIS E (R —FF N
AEAERT) [ 36755 OF Lot R s i H O AE
“EENELA — HEHEHEM R ZE
JBE e 1t U0 D PR B WS D o R A T s
S s i RN A3 E (O —F & /4B
W) 2 EBARE

o NFHEEBUGIHIY AEEGE
I e A 25 > BP DA AR fE =k DA FF
P R HE 25 43 A1k B USe B8 D7 2 AT sk Al
EEFMHZ A AREGE - B
A 52 WA T 5 2 T R e IF
HE 25 2 /> o (B B 55 40 Ak Bl i 1
77 AT G A R A SE R 2
B

o WEHRNEZEELHZEZE
At BOR o ARYERZ R 2 R
HA A A RE A SR AUE B
SR AE AT BE M ET R A 'L
il e R BN ACME 5 AR B R
PRAB 2 58 B T A 7 B e R o AR BR
REAE T HE R > BCAR AR 45 R Wi
Az~ e fEsHE > HEHRA
Rz IMER A% REA
AERRIIER A REZHE
K BT BRI R R (kR
J WS FBEE 1248 H) B
J7 LA B R RD o BT A H At B
B ENAENBRREEDLZ
AR A R 25 TR

s AEBAMEBRLAETALE
Sl 1 O 2 BR A BRAR o S ZE e
ERCLE W T e
HH B B A BEL 2E B 5 F 43 B AR
— A %S SRR A E AR B TE 1R 4
Hh R R B S 0 T DA R 55 A
LA BRB A W S A 2 — B

Annual Report 2010 &3




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS - continued

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised in 2008) might

have impact on the consolidated financial statements as
the Group had entered into certain agreements after the

reporting period as disclosed in note 46.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2009, HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasehold land. The amendments will
be effective from 1st January, 2010, with earlier application
permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, lessees
were required to classify leasehold land as operating leases
and presented as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The amendments have
removed such a requirement. Instead, the amendments
require the classification of leasehold land to be based on
the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based
on the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee.
The application of the amendments to HKAS 17 might
affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s

leasehold land at revalued amount.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact

on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and properties, which are measured at fair
values or revalued amounts, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits

from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition

or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the equity of
the owners of the Company. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional

investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

Acquisition of business is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are

recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBGHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Business combinations — continued

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority sharcholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business in carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED 4R AR A

3. TEEFHHER-&

EBEO-|

WA B E AR 2 TR R A — A E -
Y1 18 A TR > 3536 B A
H A SR A B RS AT a0 B E - A
HMERRAMFAREZ 8 - M
TR BHT R AR A T T A i
A EE - AEEERABZEA
FUE S A O AR B2 R R
IR 7 18 4 A e R

7D I R A 2 A A 5 R 2 2 4
DR PTG AR E - A R
REBZHFARMEZ WHIFE -

Gk

Wi B S5 A ) TR A AR AT ]
25t BUEE RS > I HA7E %55 BB
ARV 53 B 2 51 -

A Uk (A T 5 o A T E A Y
& 43 T T T8 0T 08 Ui 3 1Y) 55 ] R4 E 15
%t 1) 5 A BRI B R0 > B B R 4
Al o HE 43 Tl i 2 B A BB A & A AR A
B8 A B R 8RB B T B 1 B
(B FRF 8 47 (A T o 3 A FE B U4 B
A Wi 5 T 2 2 1 R ) B 7R R Y
) B A E 5% P AR B OE 4 i HEAT
AR ) o R BB A7 % AT i [ 46 AR
D B I R T E > WE IR €
43 LT 80 BT 3 B T B A AT o] P
WRm(E > HAEFRBEEMNSEEN
R T L 4 Lb 51 0 B2 T 067 1A A L At
FE o B AT AT 9 (b5 4R & B AE 1R
i PR o P I(E S IR & AR R
A5 07 [ e [m] o

TEHAR 8B A B A B AL T A
A F 7 2 1) R A < A R O o B 4R
it 1 ORI AL AR TE A

Annual Report 2010 &3k



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals
or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the jointly controlled
entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. Goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment as a single asset. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment in jointly controlled entities. Any
reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-ZF=ZF=+—HILEE

3. TEEFHHER-&

HEZHER

JU B A Sr — ] 8 S B B - T A% A
J7 SR A B RS B 2 &
B WIS R

SLfE R E A EERAML
a8 & FHIA FH AR & B R o R
AR > A I [ £ R R 2 A
WA S ¢ A 4 T S F) 2 o R O BT A R
FE T3 2 53 B A o R B > Sl 40 BR AT AT
. ik 3] 98 M 4R 1R 2 B AS TS B B 5
AR DL I HR o it A 5 B 2 36 [m] 422 il
T 2 M 18 45 S B A HL A 36 [|] 42 o
T ME AR (BLAE AV B AR SR R
% e 7] 42 1 B 2 45 i A — AR Y
TR ISR ) » HIAS 52 1S 7 ke R B
B — 20 e 18 o 8 A 2 I AR vk
B4 S BAT: B AU 3 [R] 42 ol A S
SFFRIE RS - J5 € RS I A e 18 154
K fewd AfH -

A e WS RS AS A A 4R I A A 2 ]
it BT B W I BB e R 2 Wl Rl A
- AHEERAMA T FELER
TR PR o A B B A B E R
R TH (B A > LS A AT B (0t
B A2 - 45 AR 2 V0 R T A 5
— AT W Wt o WU 3L (R
il B 8 B¢ E R T (E 09 A T e 58
{EL e 12310 A8 20 BE AR AT 2 (6045
) o AT AT i (L e 4R 8% (e 2 AR 1 g
BCE AT (] i B AR -

AT AT 74 4 [ B A Tl ) B R
BR800 S 1 (L A A A AR AS 2 22
o REEEAGR o RIRFRE 2 fERD o

" A T B A O ) e o O
722 B IR » 18 4 4 7 4 1 T A AR ) 3
[e] 42 ol R < M i T L AR o

Annual Report 2010 &3




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

services provided in the normal course of business.

Revenue arising from financial services is recognised on the

following basis:

*  Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income on a trade date basis;

*  Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
commission income, placing commission and sub-
placing commission are recognised as income in
accordance with the terms of the underwriting
agreement or deal mandate when the relevant

significant acts have been completed;

e Advisory and clearing and handling fee income are
recognised when the relevant transactions have been

arranged or the relevant services have been rendered;

e Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on
a time basis using the effective interest method, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition; and

*  Rental income under operating leases is recognised in
the profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in the profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost or fair value less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair values at the end

of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in profit or
loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to

retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of
items of property and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual

value, using the straight-line method.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in

the period in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals

and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less estimated costs of completion and the

estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The cost of properties under development for sale includes
land cost, construction cost and other direct development

expenditure.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
carned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBGHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
interests in jointly controlled entities, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. Intangible assets of the Group which
have indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in

respect of impairment of non-financial assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVIPL”) and
loans and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest

income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE—_ZT-ZTF=A=1+—HItEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables including accounts receivable, loans
and advances, loan receivable, deposits, other receivables,
amounts due from jointly controlled entities and bank
balances are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty;

e default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Accounts receivable and loans and advances that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-ZF=ZF=+—HILEE

3. TEEFHHER-&

SRIA-&
SHEE-&

R MU

5 3 BB ORI 5 8 KSR
S T S 5 504 0 0 9
TR SR - {5 R -
M I (2 95 B Wi N I~ 53K
S MR K - e A UK
IH ~ 4[] i B MG B RAT A 68 )
LT R 0 2 LA B 2
U L R, R L S )l
WAL 2 B # R -

EEEE R E

EMEE ORI %A SO ER 8 o T
R ) TR A SR R B
17 R A o i A % B RS 4R R R 2 B K
MREMEEREEY ~HRNZHE
51 B il g 2l R KRB S &
XEI MR CREEG T LI -

WE 2 BB R T LLEL A

o AT AEZ ¥y B E K B
Al ¥

o R EUR SO ALE SR & A 3K
5

o fERETT AR AT REBEE BUE AT MBS E

AT {18 il A 368 (2 T i R JH A
AR D BGER > AR i 4 8 Y A (AT
fiti o BE IR AL & BUI(E 2 % B
PTG 2 WO R B DL R
2R 1) O A T 1 DL 2 B K K T
REHEGIR UL B AT B 5 2 S )

Annual Report 2010 &3

!

B~



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable and loans and advances
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
an account receivable or loans and advances is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all

of its liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest

expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
accounts payable and amounts due to minority sharecholders
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible notes with liability and equity components

Convertible notes issued by the Group contain liability,
conversion option and early redemption options and
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument. The
early redemption options which are closely related to the
convertible notes are not separated and are accounted for
together with the host liability component. At the date of
issue, the liability component is measured at fair value. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair values assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the notes into equity, is included in equity

(convertible note equity reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity — continued

Convertible notes with liability and equity components

— continued

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible note equity reserve until the embedded
conversion option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible note equity reserve will be transferred
to share premium). Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible note equity reserve will be released to the
retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or

loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
changed directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the

convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other

comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the goods or services received are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In
addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IRRME

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE—_ZT-ZTF=A=1+—HItEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

— continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under

that standard.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risk and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating leases payments are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leaschold interests in land
are accounted for as operating lease and amortised over the

lease term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in its respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on

the dates of the transactions.

At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M IRRME

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE—_ZT-ZTF=A=1+—HItEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Foreign currencies — continued

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after Ist January, 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the

translation reserve.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the management has made various estimates based on
past experience, expectations of the future and other
information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements within the next financial

year are disclosed below.

Impairment losses on loans and advances and accounts

receivable

The Group periodically reviews its loans and advances and
accounts receivable to assess whether impairment losses
exist. In determining whether impairment losses should be
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the Group has individually evaluated its loans
and advances and accounts receivable for impairment after
taking into account the value of the underlying collateral
of each borrower, and the latest financial position and
other information available of those borrowers in default of
settlement to determine the net present value of expected
future cash inflow. If the financial conditions of the
clients of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make repayments, additional
impairment losses may be required. As at 31st March, 2010,
the carrying amount of loans and advances and accounts
receivable are HK$120,257,000 (2009: HK$299,584,000)
and HK$1,478,668,000 (2009: HK$1,348,051,000),
net of allowance for impaired debts of HK$13,128,000
(2009: HK$12,072,000) and HK$11,568,000 (2009:
HK$15,740,000), respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Fair value of financial instruments

As described in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors of the Company use their
judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used
by market practitioners are applied. As at 31st March,
2010, convertible notes designated as financial assets at
FVTPL are determined based on valuation techniques that
incorporate assumptions that are not entirely supported
by market observable data while for convertible notes
designated as financial assets at FVTPL as at 31st March,
2009, assumptions are made based on market observable
data. The carrying amount of the convertible notes is
HK$56,829,000 (2009: HK$65,439,000) (see note 31).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to sharcholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the amounts due to minority sharcholders as disclosed in
note 35 and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital as disclosed in note 39,
reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The management reviews
the capital structure by considering the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. In view of
this, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged throughout

the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXREREE-H

— continued

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong EEAETHEMZI TGS S EHR
Kong Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) and HEREES ([HBEE]) HEE  #®
are required to comply with the financial resources BREE S LA M EETR) A
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and BT BUE IR E - A EHZHE
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The BT ES MR (EEIR)
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up AR B0 5 AR 40U T A 1 e B ) <
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements BE - HHEEHHEIERZSHER
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a 2R EE A KT MEAR ST R R
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure B (M ECEIR) BT 0 R R 2R 8 & &
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements BUAE o A G M 52 B8 B IR W 4R A —
under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have BHASFHS RN E (BBCER) H A2
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the EEHE -

SF(FR)R throughout both years.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €M TH
> Categories of financial instruments ZEEEeMIA
2010 2009
—e-®5 | —EEAR
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
F 5 F 7t
Financial assets & Rl & A
Fair value through profit or loss N SO AR A 4R 4 R
— designated —J8 84,829 65,439
— held for trading —FFEESE 43,766 18,561
Loans and receivables (including B UK IE (45
cash and cash equivalents) HehB4E%SMEER) 2,611,476 2,210,980
Financial liabilities 4 Fil A AR
Amortised cost A8 5 AR 305,989 387,486
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEEEREE
The Group’s major financial instruments include financial AEEHz EFE LB T HGIERN D
assets at FVTPL, equity and debt investments, amounts due HRERERZ EMEE - B RE
from jointly controlled entities, loan receivable, accounts ARG - I A e )RR R gk IR B
receivable, loans and advances, bank balances, accounts Ko EURHETE - Bk MK~ AT A
payable, and amounts due to minority shareholders. Details 8~ TEATEETE 2 K /D B Rk IE o It
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective G4 T B 22 5EIE A B M P R o
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments I %5 4 T L By B A 2 R DA B A
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out AR B 2 BRI aF o  JHE RE
below. The management manages and monitors these 7% e 0t A R B > Tl AR T IRE D A Rk b
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented HEAT 78 5 it o

on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate loans and advances, accounts
receivable, amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
amounts due to minority shareholders and bank balances.
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to convertible notes held by the Group. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the Group is closely monitoring its exposure
arising from margin financing and other lending activities
undertaken by allowing an appropriate margin on the

interest received and paid by the Group.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets
and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk

management section of this note.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate

arising from the Group’s variable interest rate instruments.

As at 31st March, 2010, if the interest rate of loans and
advances, accounts receivable, amounts due from jointly
controlled entities, amounts due to minority shareholders
and bank balances had been 50 basis points (2009: 100
basis points) higher/lower, the Group’s profit before
taxation would increase/decrease by HK$11,335,000
(2009: loss before taxation would decrease/increase by

HK$14,460,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 6. $RITH-&

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk — continued
Fair value interest rate risk

As at 31st March, 2010, the convertible notes subject to
fair value interest rate risk bore fixed interest at rate at 8%
(2009: ranging from 1.5% to 2.0%).

If the market interest rate had been 100 basis points higher/
lower, and held other variables constant, the Group’s profit
before taxation for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$1,260,000/HK$1,300,000 (2009: loss before taxation
for the year would increase/decrease by HK$1,010,000/
HK$1,052,000), as a result of the changes in the fair value
of financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

The sensitivity analyses above are prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis points (2009: 100 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect

the exposure during the year.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its

investments in listed equity securities, investment fund and
convertible bonds issued by listed companies. The Directors
of the Company manage the exposure by closely monitoring
the portfolio of equity investments, investment fund and
derivative financial instruments. The fair value of these
financial instruments will be affected either positively or
negatively, amongst others, by the changes in the closing
market bid prices of the relevant listed equity securities and

quoted price of the investment fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Market risk — continued

Other price risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date. If the
prices of the respective equity instruments had been 20%
higher/lower, and held other variables constant, the Group’s
profit before taxation for the year would increase/decrease
by HK$8,753,000 (2009: loss before taxation would
decrease by HK$7,239,000/increase by HK$5,637,000),
as a result of changes in the fair value of listed equity

securities, investment fund and convertible notes.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent price risk as the year end

exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Currency risk

As most of the transactions and financial assets and
liabilities of the group entities are denominated in the
functional currency of the respective entities, the Group is
not exposed to significant currency risk. In the opinion of
the Directors of the Company, the currency risk exposure
to Taiwanese dollar is limited. Accordingly, no sensitivity

analysis has been presented on the currency risk.

Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties

and financial guarantees provided by the Group arises from:

e the carrying amount of the respective financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to the
financial guarantees provided by the Group to a jointly
controlled entity as disclosed in section of liquidity

risk of this note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010

BE

6.

—T-TF=A=t—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the
risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when due. Impairment allowances are made for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.
Significant changes in the economy or environment of
a particular industry segment, could result in losses that
are different from those provided for at the end of the
reporting period. Management therefore carefully manages

its exposure to credit risk.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes
by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and
to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are
monitored on a revolving basis and subject to a quarterly or

more frequent review.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis
of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to
meet interest and principal repayment obligations and by
changing these lending limits where appropriate. Exposure
to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral

and corporate and personal guarantees.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited as the
counterparties are banks with high credit rating assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

Apart from the exposure to concentration of credit risk
from a loan receivable amounting to HK$nil (2009:
HK$100,000,000) and amounts due from jointly
controlled entities amounting to HK$406,487,000 (2009:
HK$226,594,000) at the end of the reporting period, the
Group has no other significant concentration of credit
risk on accounts receivable and loans and advances, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued

Among the amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
HK$260,122,000 (2009: HK$226,594,000) is due from
Great China Company Limited (“Great China’), which
has net assets of HK$1,400,978,000 as at year ended 31st
March, 2010 (2009: HK$1,330,192,000). The remaining
HK$146,365,000 is due from Grand Waldo Entertainment
Limited (“GWE”), a new jointly controlled entity acquired
during the year as disclosed in note 22, which has net
liabilities of HK$240,542,000 as at year ended 31st March,
2010. The Group actively participates in the operation
of jointly controlled entities by assigning Directors of the
Company to the board of directors of the jointly controlled
entities and thus closely manages the credit risk from the
amounts due from jointly controlled entities. In this regard,
the Directors of the Company consider that the credit risk
is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. In addition, for contingency purposes, clean

loan facilities are put in place.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows. The difference between the
“Total undiscounted cash flows” column and the “Carrying
amount at end of the reporting period” column represents
the future contractual cash flows attributable to the
instrument included in the maturity analysis which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial liability on

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_T-TF-A=-+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERAREEEEREE &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued HEELEE-E
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued B B R F b 5 7 — A
Carrying
Weighted More than amount at
average 1 month and Total  the end of
effective ~ Repayable ~ Less than less than ~ More than undiscounted  reporting
interest rate  on demand 1 month 1 year lyear  cash flows period
mETE  AREX -fBAZ ABRRE REEHK

. ERNE k8 -fAR -£R  BBE-Ff REHR kAR
1~ %  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000
i [ Tt T T T T T

e At 315t March, 2010 R-E-2F
- =R=t-H
i l} ) Non-derivative financial FTESRER
| B liabilities
P.fi\-'t { Accounts payable e IH 0% - 0.25% 140,619 144,357 - - 284976 284,950
‘.;' ;Itﬂ" fl A Other accounts payable FoAt REATIRIA = = 4,039 = = 4,039 4,039
= Amounts due to minority &2 (T eV
shareholders - 17,000 - - - 17,000 17,000
Financial guarantee contract HEBERAL
(Note 1) (Wzt1) - - 10,968 120,645 493,387 625,000 -
157,619 159,364 120,645 493,387 931,015 305,989
At 315t March, 2009 RZZENE
=ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial FTESRERE
liabilities
Accounts payable JEfT fE 0% - 0.25% 109,128 187,359 = = 296,487 296,467
Other accounts payable Jofto REFTHIRIE = = 2915 - - 2915 2915
Amounts due to minority R YIRHR
sharcholders (Note 2) (W7t2) - 88,104 - - - 88,104 88,104
Financial guarantee contract HHABRA S
(Note 1) (Wzt1) = - 10,968 120,645 493,387 625,000 =

197,232 201,242 120,645 493,387 1,012,506 387,486
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued
Note:

(1) The undiscounted cash flows on financial guarantee contract
have been categorised into time bands based on the earliest
date the cash flows of the related bank borrowing obtained by
a jointly controlled entity is due for payment in accordance

with loan repayment schedule agreed with the banks.

As at 31st March, 2010, the Group and certain parties
provided financial guarantees to banks on a joint and several
basis in respect of banking facilities granted to a jointly
controlled entity. The maximum amount that could be
required to be paid if the guarantees were called upon the
Group and those parties amount to HK$1,250,000,000
(2009: HK$1,250,000,000). The Group guarantees 50%
(2009: 50%) of the maximum amount. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to
change depending on the probability of the banks claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the receivables held by the banks which are guaranteed suffer

credit losses.

(2) Amounts due to minority shareholders either bear interest at

Hong Kong Prime Rate or interest-free.

The following table details the Group’s expected maturity
for its financial assets. The tables below have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the
financial assets, including interest that will be earned on
those assets, except where the Group anticipates that the
cash flow will occur in a different period. The difference
between the “Total undiscounted cash flows” column
and the “Carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period” column represents the possible future cash flows
attributable to the instrument included in the maturity
analysis which are not included in the carrying amount of
the financial asset on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The inclusion of information on financial assets is
necessary in order to understand the Group’s liquidity risk
management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and

liability basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE_T—ZTF=-A=1+—HLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERAREEEEREEX &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued HEELEE-E
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued B & R F 5 g 5 7 — A
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total  the end of
offective ~ Repayable  Lessthan ~ Between ~ 3months  Between  Between undiscounted  reporting
g interestrate  ondemand  Imonth lto3months  tolyear Ito2yeas 2-Syeas  Undated  cashflows period
I nEYS  AEEX =fEA ABRRE REEER

e LS kE -BAR -2=@R  E-f -ERF ZEEF EAR  REAE  BEE
A % HKSOO  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSOW  HKS00  HKS000
: Al TEn T TEx Tk TEx T Tt T fiEx

At315t March, 2010 R-8-2F=f=1-8
Non-derivative financial assets £ S HEE
Accounts receivable ElRE HongKong 1,399,771 79,309 - - - - - 1479080 1478,668
Prime Rate
+3%t0 4%
FbRENR
M3EZ4E
Bank balances - client accounts AT -EFIRF 0.03% - 204,695 - - - - - 24,695 204,690
Bank balances - general accounts 7468 —— iR P
and cash k¥ 0.03% - BB 14970 - - - - 30695 380690
Loans and advances fevEt Note I 71 12,001 26017 67409 17,054 6,400 - B 1027
Hi
Amounts due from joincly R ARG Hong Kong - - - - - - 406,487 406,487 406,487
controlled entities Prime Rate
FibREDRE
Deposits and other receivable % AR - - 084 - - - - - 084 084
Financia asers held for rading~ {EEHZ S AR - - - - - - - BT #8766 86
Financial ases desgnated as ot~ 2 BT A A RS
FVTPL B eRER - - - - - - - 28,000 28,000 28,000
1,402,483 672,014 50,987 67,409 17,254 6,400 478053 2,695,400 2,083,242
Other financial assets HtemEE
Financial asets designated as at FEREARERAS
FVTPL KA ERARE 8% - - - 4346 4346 8,673 - 67,365 56,829

1,402,483 672,614 50,987 71,759 21,600 65,073 78053 2760765 274071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-TF=A=1+—RHIEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMTH—#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEEREEX &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued HEELEE—-E
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued B & R F g 5 7 — A
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total  the end of
offective ~ Repayable  Lessthan ~ Between ~ 3months  Between  Between undiscounted  reporting
interestrate  ondemand  Imonth lto3months  tolyear Ito2yeas 2-Syeas  Undated  cashflows period
nEYS  ARER =fEA ABRRE REESR

LS kE -BAn -2z E-f -ERF CEEF EAR  REBAE  ZREE
%  HKSOM  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSOW  HKS00  HKS000 ‘
Al TEn T TEx Tk TEx T TEr T TiEx B

At 315t March, 2009 RZEZAE=A=1-H

Non-derivative financialassets  FfT£ EHEE ——
Accounts receivable ElRE HongKong 1,272,300 76211 - - - - - LMSI 1348050
Prime Rate
+3% to 4%
FibREDAE
MEZ4E
Bank belances - cient accounss - A5 —%FIRF 0.08% - o0 - - - - - M em
Bank balances - general accounts - 7458 —— KR
and cash ke 0.08% - 73457 2138 - - - - 94,839 94834
Loans and advances feuE Note I K 6000 176553 26348 1776 - 958
Hiti
Loan receivable Bl - - - - - 100000 - - 10000 100000
Amount due from a joindy S TR Hong Kong - - - - - - 206,594 206,594 226,59
controlled entity Prime Rate
BbRAEAE
Deposits and other eceivable 4 R AR - - 1,226 - - - - - 1,226 1,226
Financia ases held for vading~ F{ERHZ SRER - - - - - - - 18,561 18,561 18,561
1,272,300 352,987 77,384 176,553 126,348 1,776 U505 2050503 2,229,541
Other financial assets EtoREE
Financial ases desgnated as ot~ 2B TEA A RS
FVIDL iz eRKE Note2 - - 3 1370 163 998 SN 54
itz
1,272,300 352,987 7107 177,923 128,041 94,694 215155 2348807 2294980

Notes: MtE -

(1)  For those fixed rate instruments, the interest rate ranged from (1) [ EF R LT H2Z HEAF10HE £24
10% to 24%; and for those variable rate instruments, the JE 5 n] s R 2R T H 2 B 2R A\ F v B
interest rate ranged from Hong Kong Prime Rate to Hong 1 B ) 2R 2 Ak I 1 B M SR N4 o
Kong Prime Rate + 4%.

(2) Convertible notes designated as financial assets at FVTPL (2) FIHR B EEGE TG 4R E A N SR E N R 2R v
bear interest at rates ranging from 1.5% to 2.0%. TR EEE » KA TF1.5EZE2.0

JE 2 F) Hwt B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE—_ZT-ZTF=A=1+—HItEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair value of listed equity securities are determined

with reference to quoted market bid prices;

. the fair value of unlisted investment fund is established
by reference to the prices quoted by the fund

administrator;

e the fair value of convertible notes issued by a private
company is estimated by generally accepted pricing
model such as discounted cash flow analysis, which
incorporate assumptions not entirely supported by
observable market prices or rates. The assumptions
include probability of initial public offering and the
discount rate adjusted for the specific risks of the

issuer.

e the fair value of convertible notes issued by listed
companies is estimated by general accepted pricing
model such as discounted cash flow analysis the
Binomial Option Pricing model which incorporate

market observable data; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices or rates from observable current market

transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate

their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value — continued

The

following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based

on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for

identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market

data (unobservable inputs).

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010

BE-T-TF-A=+—HLFRE

6. EWMIHEH-—&
ARE-E
T AR AR H O R BRI 4 W SR 5 5T
BXEMTHRZHN > BARMET T
BRI BRENERE— RS =E -

55—~ e E R B A R B
SR T R T R OR B3R )
it 28 RlERH R -

05 A MR R R — R
K 45085 7 o L
CHP ) o8 1 (B 2 46 F 07
P) L T 4 6 A R 1 2 22
Rl -

LN NV b= PR3 o AN
JE ARG AT B B T 3 R (Jak Bl A
AR 2 BERA M MGETT
B -

31st March, 2010

R=-B-ZF2E=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—fE B8 =5 st
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T TH T T T T T
Financial assets at FVTPL BEOREREBERRAZ
EREE
Held-for-trading investments BEEE 2B E 43,766 = = 43,766
Investments designated as at 8 E B A AU E R R 5
fair value through profit or loss TR & - 28,000 56,829 84,829
Total Hast 43,766 28,000 56,829 128,595

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the

R S B RLES E  HA E

current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BE-T-TF-A-t—HBLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 6. EMIT A&
Fair value — continued ARE-E
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of THEEF=FBAABETENLHIE
financial assets
HK$’ 000
T T
As at Ist April, 2009 R-FEFZNFNA—H —
Purchase [ PN 54,327
Fair value gains in profit or loss =R PN WI=R & 2,502
As at 31st March, 2010 R _EF-FFE=A=+—H 56,829
7. REVENUE 7. W=
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZERIF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT T#T
Brokerage commission KA 4 101,364 74,715
Underwriting and placing commission £ i 5 it 8 1] 4 20,972 11,715
Other commission A AR 42 - 15
Interest income from: Fl B AR -
Loans and receivables A5 TR e R A R T
— clients —%F 138,278 147,363
— financial institutions — A W 184 4,489
— clearing house —KEE 1 5
Financial assets designated as 8 2% A FRAE R R 4
at FVTPL WA 4 il
— convertible notes — AR R 1,335 425
Clearing and handling fee income A N TFEBIWA 5,453 4,508
Advisory fee income ENEE A ON 3,220 2,885
Property rental income WM B A 916 494
271,723 246,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
with effect from Ist January, 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure
standard that requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker (the Board of Director) for the purpose
of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance. The adoption of HKFRS 8 had no material

effect on the presentation of segment information.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned
by (loss from) each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, fair value gain on
derivatives, impairment loss in respect of club membership,
amortisation of prepaid lease payments and expenses related
to convertible notes. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than prepaid lease payments, building, club
membership, tax recoverable, loan receivable and other

deposit.

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other

than current and deferred tax liabilities.

However, depreciation charge of buildings are allocated
into relevant segments. The chief operating decision maker
considers the effect of such a symmetrical allocations is
not significant to the Group for resource allocation and

performance assessment.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZEREBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BE-T-TF-A=-tHBLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8.

For management purposes, the Group is currently

o ERE R - &

RO T 7 0 A4 ) B 5 -G 1
WEE . WAL BERELBE
M REME WERE HE
LIS B AR o % H I R

organised into seven operating divisions, namely, broking,
securities margin financing, money lending, corporate

finance, property development, investments and hotel and

entertainment. These divisions are the basis on which the

PR SR A DA A SRR R B R 2

chief operating decision maker reviews the operating results FME o ZEMM 2 EEEHWT -

and financial information. The principal activities of these

divisions are as follows:

Broking — provision of stockbroking, gL — RAEtRERKL -
futures and options broking, & R )RR
and mutual funds and o MHEES
insurance-linked investment R AR B AH BR &
plans and products broking wlE R o A8 A

Hie #5

Securities margin — provision of securities margin WAREEME — RIEESAES

financing financing Fill

Money lending — provision of mortgage and A — PR KH
consumer loans HRK

Corporate finance — provision of corporate advisory M E — PR LR AR
services B

Property development — development of properties for LE 95 — BRfGEYE
sale

Investments — holding of investment properties & — FHHEREWEK
and financial instruments e TR

Hotel and — operations of hotel, casino, T 15 B 5 4 — REWE - Bk

entertainment and provision of other related %> U R 3R At
services and facilities b AH B8 e 5 % s
Jits

Segment information about these businesses is presented

below.

WSS 2 o WS EORLE B AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segment:

For the year ended 31st March, 2010

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—HIEE

8. PHEH &
AT
DR b He 26T 404 4 S 4R (it 2 A S
&N E S LT

BE=F—FEZS=A—HILFEE

Securities
margin Money  Corporate Property Hotel and
Broking financing lending finance  development  Investments entertainment ~Consolidated
EERES

&a BE HE  LEBE  WEER RE EERRS EE)

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt T Tt Tt

REVENUE i 127,711 112,083 26,094 3,233 = 2,602 - 271,723
SEGMENT PROFIT 2 69,441 108,127 24,150 2,358 - 39915 35,386 279377

Unallocated corporate FAREEER
expenses (17,931)
Profit before taxation b A i 1 261,446
Taxation BE (36,922)
Profit for the year R4 i 224,524
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 BE EENFE=H="+—HIFEE
Securities
margin Money Corporate Property
Broking financing lending finance  development  Investments Consolidated
FERES

gg i BE L£EBE  NRER R&E g8

HKS’000 HKS’ 000 HKS’000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’000 HKS$’000

Tt Tt Tt Tt T T T

REVENUE K& 94,495 109,586 37,565 2,990 185 1,793 246,014
SEGMENT PROFIT (LOSS) 5 Bl (&) 37,244 105,637 24,500 2,055 85 (186,051) (16,380)
Unallocated income FLION 13,653

Unallocated corporate FAREEER

expenses (13,149)
Loss before taxation Al (15,876)
Taxation B (24,762)
Loss for the year Rt (40,638)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. DEER &

Segment assets and liabilities ITHEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and PUN 24 4% 28 T i e iR iR 2 A G
liabilities by reportable segment: & K AR 4 AT

As at 315t March, 2010

KoF—FFE=A=f—0

Securities

margin Money Corporate Property Hotel and

Broking financing lending finance  development  Investments entertainment ~Consolidated
EERES

&q HE BE LERE  WEXRE RE EERBRS e
HKS$’000 HKS’ 000 HKS$000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS$000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’000
Tk T SR T T T T T
SEGMENT ASSETS AREE 577,153 1,524,023 121,337 7,595 42,419 24069 1114407 3,601,003
Unallocated assets RN WEE 134,513
Consolidated total assets GAREAH 3,735,516
SEGMENT LIABILITIES AHEE 154,902 140,269 612 69 17,062 463 1,000 314,377
Unallocated liabilities FAEAR 19,636
Consolidated total liabilities %A A A 334,013

As at 315t March, 2009 R EENFE=H=+—H

Securities
margin Money  Corporate Property
Broking financing lending finance  development  Investments Consolidated
REREL

&L HE BE LERE  NERR RE &
HKS’000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T T T T T T T
SEGMENT ASSETS AREE 202,905 1,399,558 301,476 7375 42904 1,057,007 3,011,225
Unallocated assets FRRGEE 274,179
Consolidated total assets GAEEAH 3,285,404
SEGMENT LIABILITIES FHEE 197,243 109,128 451 52 17,062 71,805 395,741
Unallocated liabilities R WA E 10,962
Consolidated total liabilities %A A EA% 406,703

- GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #4225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information

For the year ended 31st March, 2010

Broking
HED
HKS$’000
Ti#x
Amounts included in the AENHEEL
measure of segment profit BRI A
or loss on segment assets: V& ¢
Additions of property and WERREZRE
equipment 367
Depreciation of property and ¥ Rt ffi 2 47 &
equipment 4315
Net impairment loss in respect &5 & #aK Z Bl
of loans and advances Tt =
Reversal of impairment loss on {7 4 [k 8 % F
loans to securities margin RRZBEEHR
clients 4,127
Gain on disposal of property &Rz
and equipment fisi 1
Fair value increase on REWEZANE
investment properties il -
Fair value increase on financial /A 2 (B 1 B4 HERE 2
assets at FVTPL EREENARE
s -

Share of profit of jointdy AR B R A

controlled entities .

Securities
margin
financing
RERED
m&
HK$’000
T

Money
lending

HiR
HKS’000
T

111

1,056

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BE-_T-TF-A-T+-BLEE

8. DEER &
H 5 265 %)
BHFE = FAE = = A — [ EE

Corporate
finance

tEME
HKS'000
Fibx

Property
development

NERE
HKS' 000
Tt

Hotel and
Investments entertai

RE EERRE &a :
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 g
T T T ‘

- - 4,426

- - 1,056

- - 4,127

8,604 - 8,004

12,048 - 12,048

= 35,386 35,380

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZEREBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ T ZTF=A=1+—HItEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information — continued

For the year ended 31st March, 2009

8. DEER &
Hit 5 2pE R — &
HE S ERENE=SH = A— H I EE

Securities
margin Money Corporate Property
Broking financing lending finance  development  Investments Consolidated
FERES

Fifs) & HE  LERE  NERR BE &8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
T T Fibx T T Fix Fibx

|
|

Amounts included in the AR EEL
measure of segment profit G SR N
or loss on segment assets: V& ¢

Additions of property and WERREZRE

equipment 1,310
Depreciation of property and ~ #1E Rt M 2 4i &

equipment 4,343
Net impaitment loss in respect &7k R B G2 W

of loans and advances BRI -
Gain on disposal of property i EHE R {2

and equipment g 50
Surplus on revaluation of ES T raR(

property and equipment Hth 168
Fair value decrease on REWEZARME

investment properties B -
Fair value increase on WA RER R

financial assets at FVTPL SHEENARE

s -

Share of loss of a joincly AR E R R

controlled entity -

- - - - 1,310

195 2 - - 4,540

11,976 - - - 11,976

- - - - 50

. . . - 168

- - - 4,595 4,595

- - - 9,974 9,974

- - - 193,439 193,439

Geographical information

Other than the operations of jointly controlled entities
in Macau and an investment property located in Taiwan,
the activities of the Group are based in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, the majority of the Group’s revenue is
derived from Hong Kong as the clients of the Group are
mainly based in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group’s
non-current assets are located in Hong Kong apart from
the investment property located in Taiwan and interests
in jointly controlled entities located in Macau. Details of
the investment property and interests in jointly controlled

entities were disclosed in notes 19 and 22 respectively.

Information about major customers

There were no customers for the year ended 31st March,
2010 and 2009, contributing over 10% of the Group’s total

revenue.

~ GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED &= ER A F

i 15 & B

W T[] 2 o) B R IR Y 2 DA
—HMR BB EWEI > NEHE
ZIEE) LA A AR o Rt > AR
Bz lds FEAR A HU > RE A AL
B 2 BIR F B R FUW o M AL
Mz EmEEEM R A AR A
T 2 P a3 e St ] P o) BT R 5
AR PRI BR Ak o #5781 3 K 3L [R] £ il
B 2N 0 T Bl K E19 &
2245 7% -

FBITEEFZER

HE F—FER - FEFNE=H
=1 — B L4 E ) AE B R A
£ AR 10% 2 Bk -
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9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/OTHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-ZF=ZA=+—HILEE

9. HttgBWA " Hitb &R E

GAINS AND LOSSES B
2010 2009
—E-ZF —FFIEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx T# T
9a. Other operating income 9a. HtEEWA
Interest income from jointly A& [ 42 o
controlled entities Z R B A 15,393 9,976
Sundry income HoAth e A 712 101
Surplus on revaluation of property BT AR YA S
and equipment - 168
16,105 10,245
9b. Other gains and losses 9b. Hiilizm Rk &8
Fair value increase (decrease) on BEWENE
investment properties o G ) 8,604 (4,595)
Gain on disposal of property and R E Y &L P&
equipment 1 50
Net realised gains on error trades BT 2 BB
TRt 35 50
Fair value change on financial A RER B R Z
assets at FVTPL VB E A AR
— held for trading —FFEEHRE 1,852 1,415
— designated — 6 E B IR A RE
T 15 4 T 53 10,196 8,559
Net exchange gain T 54, Wi i 5% 4R 2,749 =
23,437 5,479
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B8 & A AR
2010 2009
—E2-ZF —FFIF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T#IT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts IR LA N MR
wholly repayable within five years SRAT BB M S 2 PR 727 742
Interest on clients” accounts HEHRE ZFLE 120 386
Interest on convertible notes CIELY &% T iPs) 1,205 2,531
Interest on amounts due to minority R BB ORI 2 ) B
shareholders 1,076 3,193
Bank charges ST TEE 277 244
3,405 7,096

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEUMBIRIRMEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE— TE=-A=+—-BI4EE
11. STAFF COSTS 11. ET A
2010 2009
—E-EF ZERIF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT T#T
Staff costs, including directors’ B THA (5% F M)
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits 3 4 B oAt A A 14,383 14,845
Contributions to retirement benefits 3B R A A1 T ) £ 2
scheme 629 636
15,012 15,481
12. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 12. Biana A (B8
2010 2009
—e-BF | —FELE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT T#T
Profit (loss) before taxation has been AT A 8 KD
arrived at after charging (crediting): OB (FEA) R A4 E -
Auditor’s remuneration 12 BRI M 4= 2,700 1,552
Net impairment loss in respect of B S BGR  (E s 1R
loans and advances (included in (Fh A HoAth 45 45 B )
other operating expenses) 1,056 11,976
Reversal of impairment loss on loans 8% [m] 55 5 AR i % P B K
to securities margin clients (included Z WAE R B (FHAH Al
in other operating expenses) BEX) (4,127) -
Impairment loss in respect of club & T & 55 2 W (E i 1R
membership (included in other (G A o Ath 25 3 BH %)
operating expenses) 400 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEY ¥, REHHHE
rented premises 1,080 1,079
Rental income from investment KEBEY WA
properties (916) (494)
Net exchange (gain) loss BE 54, (i %) Js 15 T 40 (2,749) 3,105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—HIEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13.EERESHE
EMOLUMENTS
The remuneration paid or payable to each of the 9 (2009: AT AT T4 (- FEEILLE : 944)
9) directors were as follows: FEHRZANZIFMTE
Cham Shum Wong Liu Kwong

Hung ~ WaiHo, KinWai,  Sheung Cheng Chun Ning, Chung Man  ChiKit,
HonMan  Anthony  Frankie ~ Kwong ~ WaiHo  Wilfred WaiKeung  Kong Yui Victor Total
AEX  EEER  SBE  IAT  BRE  BRE  EER AR BSR &g
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$000
Tkn TEx  TEx Téx  FiEx  TEx Tz TEx TEx T

2010 Z2-%F
Fees e - - - - - - - ) 9} 84
Other emoluments: O -
Salaries and other benefits B R ARA 126 329 336 280 336 - - - - 1,407
Contributions to retirement SRARAR AT 5
benefit scheme 6 12 12 12 12 - - - - 54
Commission (e - - 394 767 955 - - = = 2,116
Total remuneration Eolika 132 341 742 1,059 1,303 - - 4 4 3,661
Cham Shum Wong Liu Kwong
Hung ~ WaiHo, KinWai,  Sheung Cheng Chun Ning, Chung Man  ChiKit,
HonMan  Anthony  Frankie ~ Kwong ~ WaiHo  Wilfred WaiKeung Kong Yui Victor Total
HEX  HEAR  4BE  IMI 0 BRE  BRE  BRE  XAE B4 ag
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS 000
Tix  THx  TEx  Téx  TEx  TEx TEx  TEx TEx TEx
2009 ZBENE
Fees e - - - - - - - ) 9} 84
Other emoluments: JfME -
Salaries and other benefits B R RA 117 306 312 260 312 - - - - 1,307
Contributions to retirement SRR 5
benefit scheme 6 12 12 12 12 - - - - 54
Commission e = = 238 491 373 - - = = 1,102
Total remuneration bk 123 318 562 763 697 - = 4 4 2,547
No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31st WHRERERNEE - FZ—FERL_FTE
March, 2010 and 2009. JUAE = H =+ — H 1k 4F B 5 5 AT ]
I
& °

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RER AT Annual Report 2010 &3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS - continued

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
one (2009: one) director of the Company, details of
whose emoluments are set out above. The details of the
emoluments of the remaining four (2009: four) individuals

are as follows:

1B3.EEREEME &

BEMSE
7 A T A S 1R 38 MR N B —
(ZFFNAEFE — ) Aorl#EE > H
P < 1 O |3 o LRI (—FE
JUAE = VA7) fe s M8 N+ 2 B 4w
THF

2010 2009

—E-=F ZEEIAF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FExT T T

Salaries, commission and other benefits 34 ~ 1 4 S HoAth 45 ) 6,460 4,518
Contributions to retirement benefit R R AR I 848 R

scheme 8 22

6,468 4,540

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals of the

Group were within the following bands:

A % 10 57 d v 8 A B < A T
PATF i

Number of employees

EEEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZERL I
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 %% JC £ 1,000,000 JC - 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %% 7 £.1,500,000%% 7C 3 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 %% JC 2,000,000 JC 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 JC £2,500,000%% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 %% JC % 3,000,000 JC 1 .
5 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals (including Directors and
employees) and other directors as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

AR N o A AR 1 Sl 1) 7 A o 3R P A
INL (BEEE R g B) R H Al E
SCAT AR AT & > 1 2 10 56 i B AR 4R
BN IRAE > AR A A A
& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BE-_T-TF-A-T+-BLEE

14. TAXATION 14. H18
2010 2009
—E-EF ZERIF
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 ¥
THERT T
Hong Kong Profits Tax: s F 158
Provision for the year A A JE T A 34,677 27,207 A
Under(over)provision in prior years DUTE AR B # AS 2 (R R A 1,153 (736) §-
| -:9";- X
35,830 26,471 Sl
Deferred taxation (note 38) A% AL B VE (M FE38) 1,092 (1,709) % |'_|'_'L‘
36,922 24,762 =

On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate
profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year
of assessment 2008/09. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax
is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for

both years.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZEREBR AR

W oEBENENA S H S FilEL
e 2008 F IR AR ) > 4
2 15 Bl 2R 12008/20095 Bl 4F i
FH17.5%8 £16.5% ° B It » & % 7 15
Fod T i A1 AT BE 22 Al w8 RRUBE Uk A DA
16.5%Z Bl 5 H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BE-T-TF-A=-tHBLFE

14. TAXATION - continued 14. Bi1E— &
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit A A A T B £ 4 T U 2 R A B T
(loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of T A (E548) 2 SR Ean R ¢

comprehensive income as follows:

2010 2009
Sl
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
THERT Tt
: ; Profit (loss) before taxation At B s A (5 48) 261,446 (15,876)
Taxation at Hong Kong Profits Tax P2 75 e A A3 BB %16.5%
of 16.5% it F 2 BLIH 43,139 (2,620)
Tax effect of share of result of joincly — H{ih 7] £ il B #8 348 2
controlled entities Tt 5 5 28 (5,839) 31,917
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AN AT 0B S 2 B R
for tax purpose 538 2,505
Tax effect of income not taxable AN EFRBLA 2 Bl 5 2
for tax purpose (2,196) (6,073)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses KRR E R B 1R 2
not recognised Tl 5 7 2 80 72
Under(over)provision in prior years DA 4F B H R
ek k2] 1,153 (736)
Reversal of deferred tax liabilities HARHEREWEZ
arising from change in intention of T () A B T 43 ] A0 AiE
an investment property disposed ﬁIEE f& (35) (116)
Effect of change in tax rate G — (297)
Others HoAth 82 110
Taxation for the year A A JEE B IH 36,922 24,762
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—HIEE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. R &
2010 2009
—E-2F —EF N
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FET Tt
Final dividend for prior year, paid eAf > BRI E
— HKI1 cent (2009: HK2 cents) — B 1Al
per share (ZFFIUAF 284l 38,025 63,379 o
Interim dividend for current financial Eft > AMBUEEZ A
year, paid — HK1 cent (2009: Fh A B B — B B A o
HK1 cent) per share (ZFFIUE - 1) 39,115 31,687
Dividend recognised as distribution A B e RR I 40 IR 2 IR
during the year 77,140 95,066

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March,
2010 of HKI cent per share, amounting to approximately
HK$42,495,000 (2009: final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31st March, 2009 of HK$1 cent per share,
amounting to approximately HK$35,265,000) has been
proposed by the Directors and is subject to the approval
by the owners of the Company in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

EEERRBRE T -FE=1
=t HIREEREEANIR B G R
il - SEFF4 F542,495,0008 8 (—FF
NE:BEEFEZNEFE=A=+—H
RA4E B 2 A B B B A e i Al > 65T
#) 435,265,000 7C) - 1 = JE iR E
JB SR 4K AN R N A
(-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMPBIRFRMEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HEZ TE=-A=+—-BIL4EE
16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 16. 3REF (&1])
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per AN T HEA N B AL B R 3 A I 48 7
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on F (B518) T5 3% DA R B REH
the following data:
2010 2009
—s-sF B NE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT THTT
Earnings (loss) ZF (BE)
Profit (loss) for the purpose of basic F B A
earnings (loss) per share ZA (E48) 2 % A ( Efﬁ) 224,212 (19,082)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary e 78 i 2 YA
shares:
Interest on convertible notes AT g 2 F R 1,205 -
Profit (loss) for the purpose of diluted — Fi i &1 53 15 i 4 18
earnings (loss) per share A (1) 2w A (&) 225,417 (19,082)
2010 2009
—E-ZF “EENF
000 >000
TR Tk
Number of shares & H
Weighted average number of ordinary — F A w53 1 e HE A
shares for the purpose of basic B (E48) 2 & 78 Kk
earnings (loss) per share I S 1) 5 3,698,343 3,168,876
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary e 78 e 2 YA R
shares:
Share options (Note i) 1% BERE (M ki) - =
Convertible notes (Note ii) A4 B SR (M Atii) 32,752 -
Weighted average number of ordinary — F it 51 5 45 /I 4 v
shares for the purpose of diluted BRI (e 18) 2 3% 4 1
earnings (loss) per share I S 24 8 3,731,095 3,168,876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-TF=A=1+—RHIEE

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BRBA (HE) - &
— continued
Notes: MEE
(i) The computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share for the (i) FIEEE-"ZF-FTE=H=1+—HK
years ended 31st March, 2010 and 31st March, 2009 does CEENF A= —HIEFEEZE
not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share R 2 A (Bs18) BF > AN |l M
options as the exercise price of those options is higher than RAT A 2 B P HE 2 A7 ok A R B A7 A 5%
the average market price for shares for both years. A 4F B 2 S TS £ e o RGIE R
R 5% A R T RE A 8 o
(i) The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended () FIEEE-_FFENFE=H=1+—HIk
31st March, 2009 does not assume the conversion of the SERE 7 A R S R > R A AT
Company’s outstanding convertible note since its assumed W AT 2 AT 4 i SR R AT A 4
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share. g R o B S R sk A B AT i
I 0 1 £ 0 =
17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. AR EERE FORN
2010 2009 ==
—e-%5 | —FEIAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T#IT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments A SR 2 AT B R IEH A
comprise:
Leaschold land in Hong Kong PR FHZHE L
— Medium-term lease — MR8 o A A 91,331 93,781
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MRS E AT
Current assets B & 2,450 2,450
Non-current assets I B & 88,881 91,331
91,331 93,781
The Group has pledged certain prepaid lease payments AEEC A THEMHEREEM -
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Details VE oy AN 45 B S SR AT RS 2 R 5 o
of the pledge are set out in note 45 to the consolidated A BE AT 2 5E 1 O A B RS R R ‘_:
financial statements. 745 o ‘
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_T-TF-A=-+—HLFE

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥R EHE
Leasehold Motor Office  Furniture
Buildings improvements vehicles  equipment  and fixtures Total
BENE

BT & RE WAER® HKERRE At
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS$ 000
T T T T T T

COST OR VALUATION ~ KA Z fEE

At 1st April, 2008 REZZENENA—H 23,740 11,252 3,729 14,037 1,246 54,204
Additions NE = = 705 602 3 1,310
Adjustment on revaluation % fii #i % 1,390 - - - - 1,390
Disposals HE - (34) (1,554) = = (1,588)
Write-off s = = - (586) (8) (594)
a2 At 315t March, 2009 REZFENF=A=1—H 25,130 11,18 2,880 14253 1,241 54,722
Additions RE - - - 260 107 367
| Adjustment on revaluation ERY kS (624) - - - - (624)
Disposals e - — — (17) = (17)
At 315t March, 2010 RoB-FE=ZA=+—H 24,506 11,218 2,880 14,496 1,348 54,448
Comprising: {2k
At cost WA - 11,218 2,880 14,496 1,348 29,942
At valuation - 2010 FHE-—F—FF 24,506 - - - - 24,506
24,506 11,218 2,880 14,496 1,348 54,448

DEPRECIATIONAND  HERHE

IMPAIRMENT

At 1st April, 2008 RZFENELA—H - 5,633 3,023 8,717 979 18,352
Provided for the year EEERE 608 2,045 493 1,320 74 4,540
Eliminated on revaluation [ B4 (608) - - - = (608)
Eliminated on disposals it i A 4 = = (1,554) = = (1,554)
Eliminated on write-off WS R A8 - - - (586) (8) (594)
At 31st March, 2009 REZENFE=H=1—H = 7,678 1,962 9,451 1,045 20,136
Provided for the year R 611 2,005 394 1,331 8 4,426
Eliminated on revaluaion T fi R4 55 (611) = = = = (611)
Eliminated on disposals it R A4 = - - (17) - (17)
At 31st March, 2010 moZ-FE=H=1—H = 9,683 2,356 10,765 1,130 23,934
CARRYING VALUES REE

At 315t March, 2010 n=Z—-FE=H=1+—H 24,506 1,535 524 3,731 218 30,514
At 315t March, 2009 REZENE=ZA=1—H 25,130 3,540 918 4,802 196 34,586
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

— continued

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings The shorter of the remaining lease
terms of land on which the buildings
are located and 50 years

Leaschold improvements ~ The shorter of the remaining lease
terms of land on which the buildings
are located and 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 6.67 years

The buildings of the Group were valued on 31st March,

2010 and 31st March, 2009 by Messrs. CB Richard Ellis,

on an open market value basis. Messrs. CB Richard Ellis are

not connected with the Group. Messrs. CB Richard Ellis are
members of Estate Agents Authority, and have appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations.

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would have
been included in these consolidated financial statements
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses of HK$22,028,000 (2009:
HK$22,638,000).

The Group had pledged a property to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. Details of the pledge are set

out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

18. IR KR - &

VA W2 Je et TH H J9 3% LA R AE R DU
HAERHEDTE

i &3 BF e T2 B
BS504F (LI AE # /3 )
HEWEKE BTHELBZE5 TR
S (LIRS fy i)
it 44F

b YNEST 3E54F
FHE R E 5E6.674F

AL 2Ty i IR AL A R A
AR-F-FF=A=+t—HE=F
TRE=ZHA=+—HEAMTEEE
HEAT Al o TR 3R B0 A A BR A ) B A
2 1 f7 i el o R BB A A R D
M EAMEER KA - BHEE
K T 2 A TR M B E 2
(LRERY

1 5 A TN AE AL > R T
SORA R RET KR S E
8 1422,028,000% ¢ (T FE fL4E
22,638,000%70) TEA5 A MBI R Ik -

AEEO A —HY) EEM - fERAE
P R SRAT R 2 AT A o A B
Z I MR AR A BB R M R4S o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REY X

|
|

2010 2009
—e-®F | —EEE
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
THERT Tt
FAIR VALUE DRE

At beginning of the year R AEA) 74,600 49,550
Additions A - 40,397

Net increase (decrease) in fair value IR IR R 2 A N E
recognised in profit or loss B (982 5 EE 8,604 (4,595)
Disposal e (5,780) (7,250)
Exchange alignment e g, o] & 2,628 (3,502)
At end of the year TN 4 80,052 74,600

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as
at 31st March, 2010 and 31st March, 2009 have been
determined by the Directors of the Company except for an
investment property located in Taiwan, which was acquired
during the year ended 31st March, 2009. No valuation
has been performed by independent qualified professional
valuers. The valuation performed by the Directors of the
Company was arrived at by reference to recent market prices

for similar properties at similar locations.

The investment property located in Taiwan, amounting to
HK$40,352,000 (2009: HK$37,600,000), was valued at its
open market value as at 31st March, 2010 by Messrs. CB
Richard Ellis, an independent firm of professional valuers
not connected with the Group. Messrs. CB Richard Ellis are
members of Estate Agents Authority, and have appropriate
qualification and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction

prices for similar properties at similar locations.

AEEMBEYWER -F -FF=H
=t -HEZFFRFE=ZH=1+—
HZ s SRS M AR 2 R 3 2 6 E -
—HRBE_FFNF=ZA=1—H
A ¢ AT =g Pakid &/ ES
B o A H 8 SL A A S A (A
FI G ME o A Rl 2 5 2 75 M B
RN S 2 i 45 4B AR T A AT A
{8 o

PL B ¥ 5 840,352,000 06 (—FE
JUAE 1 37,600,000 7)) 2 B EWET)
Hy B 7 4 [ 3l A B 2 L BN
(B Fifi A7 T FR AR BEAL A PR J S & —
FHEZHZ+— B AN E BT
B o BB B A A PR 7] 2 b A
EERZRE > BHEGEZ G KR
AT A B AL ) 3 2 Al (A R B o
H BN E T3 2 2% M 45 b B 2 ) 3
Z A8 G ARG T 5 IR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
All of the Group’s property interests held under operating

leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties.

The Group has pledged certain investment properties to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Details
of the pledge are set out in note 45 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

19. REYE—E
7 4 1B 2 AT W R 2% 0 LA L
KA DU IR 4 B0 BOB A1
{8 o 3% % Wy S HE 35 T DA/ Fo MM 3
& WaB AR E Y E R ARE -

AEEOHE TEEYEEAMN  ER

A B T A SR AT R 2 AT o A
B 2 I HOR £ BB R B R4S o

I IEd<g/EPd 3 KKk 3

comprises: VVE y-
Fios
=
2010 2009 LAY
—E-ZF —ERIAE
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 1
FHET T j
Land in Hong Kong: AR L4
Long lease RIER YA 8,400 6,300
Medium-term lease R 4% H 1 FH 4 31,300 30,700
Land outside Hong Kong: PR EHEE I 4
Frechold KA FERE 40,352 37,600
80,052 74,600

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20 BL B E

Trading rights
in Hong Kong Club
exchanges memberships Total
ERRSBM
ZREE  EREH G
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

T#IT R T T

COST R A
At 1st April, 2008, W_FFNENHA—H

31st March, 2009 K EEAFE=ZH=+—H 5,850 5,350 11,200
Addition NE - 900 900
At 31st March, 2010 MW oE—EE=ZHA=+—H 5,850 6,250 12,100
IMPAIRMENT bRl
At 1st April, 2008, WZFENFENMH—H

31st March, 2009 M _EEZNFEZH=+T—H 3,196 = 3,196
Charge for the year AR ST - 400 400
At 31st March, 2010 R _E—FEE=H=+—H 3,196 400 3,596
CARRYING VALUES BREEE
At 31st March, 2010 W oE—-EE=H=+—H 2,654 5,850 8,504
At 31st March, 2009 W oEENFE=ZHA=+—H 2,654 5,350 8,004

In previous years, management of the Group determined
that certain trading rights amounting to HK$1,053,000
were no longer utilised to generate profits to the Group. For
the purpose of impairment testing on these trading rights,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on
secondary market prices and no impairment was made as at
31st March, 2010 and 31st March, 2009. The recoverable
amounts of other trading rights with carrying value of
HK$1,601,000 (2009: HK$1,601,000) held by the Group
have been determined with reference to the recoverable
amounts of the Cash-Generating Unit (“CGU”) of broking
business based on a value in use calculation which was
similar to the impairment testing on goodwill. Particulars
regarding impairment testing on the other trading rights are

disclosed in note 23.

" GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED &#7 2R ERA T

RUEEE  REEMZEER LS
T %5 #1,053,000% JC 2 %8 5 HE A fg
FI DA By A S5 1 AR R - FE B IS
5 RE AT (B AR W IR > L T i ] 4
CRBE-_FHGHREMEE - R _F
—EFEEZA=ZF+HE EENE=
H=+—H I 8 (E - A% HFEA IR
T {8 £51,601,000%5 76 (& F JLAF -
1,601,000%5 70) 2 HAth 52 5 HE i wT i =]
SH BB EBHETZBHEEMN
A i R o AR R B (E T (B
T (LA TR AR B ) T A A o HoAth s 5
HE 2 (B AG B 5 19 7 B k23 b 4 R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR RMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — continued 20 B EE—&
Intangible assets amounting to HK$5,850,000 (2009: Fy %05,850,0004 ¢ (—FE T JL4E ¢
HK$5,350,000) represent club memberships. For the 5,350,000% JC) 2 T & = 18 & T &
purpose of impairment testing on club memberships, Eo-memeEZBmEMRNMNS > K
the recoverable amount has been determined based on Wi o] 458 T AR 98 T T B A A e Y
the second-hand market price less costs of disposal. ERAMEE -C2E5gmglzn
An impairment loss of HK$400,000 was recognised e 7] 4 %8 1 At 52.400,000 %% JC 2 6 (8 5
with reference to the recoverable amount of the club =
memberships.
In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the trading RNFEED L > KWK
rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives. LA 4 PR AR o
21. GOODWILL 21. B8
HKS$ 000 LN
R )
COST RA ’
At Ist April, 2008, 31st March, 2009 RoFEFENENA—H -
and 31st March, 2010 CEENE==+—H
”=F—FFE=H=+—H 15,441
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are A B P R E A 2 I R B s 23k
disclosed in note 23. 7% o
22. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 2. HE R4 BB o ERE
ENTITIES
2010 2009
—E-Z2F ZEEJLAE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
Cost of unlisted investment in joincly &3 [F] £l B #8 2 IF B Jg
controlled entities BE W A 700,127 692,696 ,:
Share of post-acquisition profits (losses) A i B 12 e A (5 48) 7,793 (27,593) L"'
707,920 665,103

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RER AT Annual Report 2010 &3R8




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_T-TF-A=-+—HLFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 2. HEEHERB 2R &

ENTITIES - continued

As at 31st March, 2010 and 2009, the Group had interests W oE —EER _EENE=H

in the following jointly controlled entities: =+ —H o AEBEEA T 5 R 5 H

H A
Proportion of nominal
Form of business Place of Principal place Class of  value of issued capital Proportion of

Name of entity structure  incorporation  of operations share held held by the Group voting power held Nature of business
AREERZDRE

AREH EHRBEA ERAULE TEEXBE FRRORN  REEEZRE Fri AR LL Bl £33

2010 2009 2010 2009

E-RF CETAFE ZR-BF CETAR

o TR Great China Company Limited ~ Incorporated Macau Macau  Quota capital 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment property
=1 Ik s Y WH o REERE holding
o i S
W['th_
1 r—’.;':":\dl / Grand Waldo Entertainment Incorporated Macau Macau  Quota capital 50% - 50% - Casino business
Voo Limited Fiaul o r W REEA B
o o SHREHERAR
‘% Grand Waldo Hotel Limited Incorporated Macau Macau  Quota capital 50% - 50% - Hotel business
LN (“GWH”) FE M il i RHEEA i SE 7
SMEERRAR
(TR HE )
Grand Waldo Outlets Limited Incorporated Macau Macau  Quota capital 45% - 45% - Hotel-related
(“GW0”) FEA AL M R RHEEA entertainment
EWAERHRA business
(E=: 29554l i 5 A1
RAEET
Carnival Club Limited Incorporated Macau Macau  Quota capital 50% - 50% - Hotel-related
(“CCL) FEA AL R M A A entertainment
FEEGARAT business
([Fi#Eg ) i A
BREXH
At 31st July, 2009, the Group acquired 50% equity interest MOEEAE LA =1+—H > &NE£EH
of GWE and 50% of its shareholders’ loan at a total DLW T 2 A8 A AG i B 4 1 I 4% 2 50%
consideration of HK$2. JBC A 4 B H IR 5K 2 50% ©
Also, Great China acquired 100% equity interest of GWH BEAh > ok H 3 0 B 4 R S M 55 AE EE
and CCL, and incorporated a new entity, GWO, in which &2 100% B ASHE 55 > N 5E M oL T —
Great China holds 90% equity interest. M ER - AES - RTFHEREAR

A TE 1T 2Z90% I AR 1 £5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES - continued

The summarised financial information in respect of the
jointly controlled entities related to the Group’s interests in

the jointly controlled entities is set out below:

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-ZF=ZF=+—HILEE

22 HEEZEHER z2ED - &

A7 B AR 4R 7 3[R 42 A8 2 M 4 1
] 2 1 B B B S R S AN

2010 2009

S

HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FH5 Tt

Current assets i B B 64,292 19,681
Non-current assets JE I B & A 1,516,827 1,400,000
Current liabilities i =K 133,018 30,661
Non-current liabilities JE i B & & 867,883 723,924
Total income AU A 513,954 92,794
Total expenses APA S 495,904 286,233

The share of result of jointly controlled entities is mainly
attributable to the fair value change on investment

properties of the hotel complex.

As at 31st March, 2010, Great China had a hotel
complex located in Macau, which were accounted for as
investment properties and property and equipment with
a fair value of HK$2,145,800,000 and a carrying amount
of HK$678,954,000 (fair value of HK$854,200,000),
respectively. The property was valued by Messrs. Savills
(Macau) Limited using Income Approach. Messrs. Savills
(Macau) Limited is an independent firm of professional
valuers not connected with the Group and is a member of
Estate Agents Authority, and have appropriate qualification
and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties
in Macau. As at 31st March, 2009, the property was
accounted for as investment property by Great China with a
fair value of HK$2,800,000,000.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

A IR 22 T R R AR T R A
BaRRY 2 BEYMEN S REEE) -

MW oF—FE=ZA=+—H > kK
FERBMAE T IEESEREY
ARGIER G EURY E KE
# > 0 o H £52,145,800,000% JC >
W T (B £5678,954,000% JC (2 L {H A
854,200,000 JC) © iZ Y 2 Ty H 5
— RO RAE T (R PY) A BR A A LA
EHETT AN E o 55 — KP a4 T (R PY)
A B2 ] 2 B 42 ) NI 0 B 2 8 ST
HEMEMAT > HAMEREESR
2 E > B AR 2 G il R
PSR 2E 2 G A BR - iR = FF N
EZA=Z+—H > ZWERKPER
2,800,000,000% JC 2 A L {E A Wk 51 1E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBGHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

R0

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES - continued

As at 31st March, 2010, the Group and certain parties
provided financial guarantees to banks on a joint and several
basis in respect of banking facilities granted to Great China.
The Group and the other joint venturer of Great China
pledged in favour of the banks all the shares of Great China
in respect of the aforesaid banking facilities. Other details

are set out in note 6 under Liquidity Risk.

The share of losses of GWE for the year is limited to the
investment cost of the Group. The unrecognised share of

losses for the period from the date of acquisition to 31st

March, 2010 is HK$17,336,000.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill set out in notes 20 and 21, respectively, have been
allocated to the broking CGU, including four subsidiaries
engaged in broking operations (see note 8 for details of
segment information). The carrying amounts of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) and certain trading
rights as at 31st March, 2010 and 31st March, 2009

allocated to the broking unit are as follows:

Broking FEE )

22 HEEZEHER 2ED - &

23.

MoFE-FE=A=+—H > &AEH
BUE T AN EBRH #ERZ RITEE
LA L[] K 2% il 22 YEE ) SR AT 42 44 B B
PEOR o A 42 [ BELOR v 2 2 A 8 7
B _E B ERAT R SR BT A K g2
JBC A HEAR T $RAT o A 155 A B k6
HH R I B A B R 4 o

NGRS IR YO8 Pl VRN
ZHREMALR - RUER B E —F
—RE=H =+ — H 2 KRR
15 5 18 £ 17,336,000 7C °

BEREMRSEZRERR

A3 B B 5E20 Je21 2 A5 T 4B BR E fil
FHAE 1A 22 ) i e o B B 4 i & AR 4D 40
2 A LA > A5 DY A S AR AL 2
i) YNGINEEN DS <y S
w2 B K EES) o 43l 48 4L S B
Z A (kR R EHEEEER) kE T8
R T —FFE ==+ —H k=
FENFEZA=+—HOEmED T

Trading

Goodwill rights
[k XEE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#: T T TT
15,441 1,601
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23.

24

25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS
— continued

The recoverable amounts of the above CGU containing
goodwill and certain trading rights have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 12% (2009: 12%) and at zero (2009: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value in use calculation is the
budgeted growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the above CGU to fall
below the aggregate carrying amount of the above CGU.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets represent statutory and other deposits with
various exchanges and clearing houses. They are non-

interest bearing.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities at
31st March, 2010 and 2009 are unsecured, without pre-
determined maturity date and carry interest at Hong Kong
prime rate. The amounts are denominated in Hong Kong
dollar and their repayment require approval by the board of

directors of respective jointly controlled entities.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

The loan was interest free, repayable on or before 12th
May, 2009 and was secured by a personal guarantee of a
director of GWE. The loan was reclassified as amounts
due from jointly controlled entities and the terms were
revised (as disclosed in note 25) upon the completion of the
acquisition of 50% interest in GWE during the year ended
31st March, 2010.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

23.

24.

25.

26.

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-ZF=ZF=+—HILEE

BEREAXZEZRER
Al —

bt R R R T RS G HE 2 A B
A 2 AT i [m] 4 36 B AR 95 76 A AE (E w1
M o RZ T A AR 8 P R AR
2 WA BEE K 12% (—FEJUAF
1200) XM F (ZFTJLFE - F) Z B8
REGHEREEY - HEZHER
HEREAFEEZ FERS - HE
2 S R TR DA A 2 R B B
T8 8 R 2 W o A
5 o AT AR B 2 AT AT & 3 ] g 2 i A
R g bl A B AL 2 A R AT i
R B R B A 2 AR AR I o

HthEE

H A 8 7 R34 T R I 22 5% T o s
B 2 058 B F A 4 o A B 2l
7t e

HEZHERIK

BoF - FERFFLE A
= B2 S B G A
0 S 0 O 4 i R
ST - 1 B O A T 0 A
SEIFL P BEMS 5 A0 A AR <

B E X

FZESRBRE - AR _FERIFEL
A+ = Bz A fE R > 3l H i 5 s
S — & B PR O R R IR
o E_ZT-FTF=H=1—H
1E4F FE 52 B WA 4 41 12 44 2 500 HE 25
1% > 5% 4B K O R 4 B A S [ B
BB R R A B ER B B RT (Bt
25T ER) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_T-TF-A=-+—HLFE

27. LOANS AND ADVANCES 27. ERRBR

2010 2009
—E-EF ZERIF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Fa% T
Fixed-rate loan receivables Il 7 1) 2 JHE i B 3k 107,396 282,202
Variable-rate loan receivables A 53 1] 2R E U B K 25,989 29,454
Less: allowance for impaired debts I ol (AR S B A (13,128) (12,072)
120,257 299,584
Secured A KA 89,396 74,093
e Unsecured 4 A1 30,861 225,491
" il
1 lr e 120,257 299,584
¥~ il
-\
b CaLh Analysed as: Vigiw
Current L 101,927 276,540
Non-current I E) 18,330 23,044
120,257 299,584
Effective interest rate: B R
Fixed-rate loan receivables [#] 72 ) % JE Wi B K 10% - 24% 10% — 24%
Variable-rate loan receivables AT 5 ) 2 R B R Hong Kong Hong Kong
Prime rate to Prime rate to
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Prime rate + 4% Prime rate + 4%
EBREEANE | FEREEMR
ZEEREER ERHGRER
= h4E ] 2 Fin 4

AR —BEZA=+—H HETE

K B AR A AU B £5143,290,000 %
JC (FEFZ LA+ 272,120,000% 70) E
B EE R o

At 31st March, 2010, certain of the loans and advances are
secured by pledged properties with an aggregate fair value of
HK$143,290,000 (2009: HK$272,120,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued

The Group determines the allowance for impaired debts
based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis
of accounts and on management’s judgment, including
assessment of change of credit quality, collaterals and the
past collection history of each client. The concentration of
credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated. Accordingly, the Directors believe that no
specific credit allowance in excess of the allowance for

impaired debts is required.

Included in the Group’s loans and advances are individually
impaired customers with an aggregate balance of
HK$31,257,000 (2009: HK$12,072,000). Such customers
are facing financial difficulties in meeting commitments and
full repayment of principal and interest is in doubt. The
Group held collateral for these impaired loans and advances

which are properties located in Hong Kong.

Movement in the allowance for impaired debts is as follows:

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

27. BERRBR-&

7 2 ) AR 4% 36 i (B S T 2 1K I R i
ZEEAG > DA A B 2 R (A EE
HHERBL 2 EH S ESEER
ZWCRRC Bk ) TR (B RS < 44 o
AL EEE T RRAR HA%
J5 LB JRE KNG . H A B o R
ORI B 7R A A el (L S 184
i 5E £ B A -

A2 ) 2 R S BR8P e E 2
K5 ) A5 R 531,257,000 00 (%
T ILAE ¢ 12,072,000 9C) - ABKEF
B 7 B AT 7K i T 48 B B T
AE G R REA S KA EAFEE - AE
VB 5 Ot 5 A (B K M B RR A 2 HE A
AN E W W -

RS B 2 T

2010 2009

—e-®F | —EENE

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FExT T#T

Balance at beginning of the year ERHE R 12,072 96
Charge for the year A A0 BR 1,112 11,981
Reversal for the year A A $3 ] (56) (5)
Balance at end of the year SRR 4R 13,128 12,072

A AT PR R @

Before granting loan to any new customer, the Group

will assess the credit quality of a potential customer and
defines credit limit by customer. Included in the Group’s
loans and advances are debtors with a carrying amount of
HK$2,784,000 (2009: HK$180,000) which are past due
but not impaired at the reporting date. The Directors of
the Company consider such debts as recoverable since the
amounts are either secured by a pledge over properties
with estimated market value of HK$1,360,000 (2009:
HK$1,360,000) or were subsequently settled and thus no

impairment allowance is considered necessary.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

BB EREF 2 fFEE R H %
HEF IR S RE - AL 2 EH M

BT R E T

1] {6 752,784,000% 76 (=& F JL4F ¢
180,000%5 JC) 2 FE WS 3K IH » A< /A W]
HRAABFER T > A
IB#] K TEL A DA Ak 51T (E 29 1,360,0009 7T
(ZFEZEILE : 1,360,000% ) 2 W) %
EHCHT > sk it AR HE > HIER
B VB AR (A A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

27. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued 27. BERRBR-&
In respect of loans and advances which are past due but LR SR N G I T R (=
not impaired at the end of the reporting period, the ageing K BGERT E  AH B R 2 B (| 2 H
analysis (from due date) is as follows: EF) W
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —EF L
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
THERT Tt
0 — 30 days 0E30K 35 =
31 — 60 days 31 E£60K 2,587 =
Over 90 days 90K 162 180
= 7 2,784 180
The loans and advances with a carrying amount of T H OB BRI E A5117,473,0004s
HK$117,473,000 (2009: HK$299,404,000) are neither I6 (. EEJLAE 1 299,404,000% 7T) 2
past due nor impaired at the reporting date. In view of BE R T BG4 v ) IR AR e (L - 5
the repayment history of these customers and collateral R ERE 7 im R sRLL R ritfit 2
provided, the Directors of the Company consider the LIS > ANF E B LA BERIE L
amount to be recoverable and of good credit quality. "L K B R SRR o
DEPOSIT 28. &
As at 31st March, 2010, amount represented deposit paid ANTE—-FBE=HA=+—H > K
by the Group for acquisition of a yacht. As at 31st March, TE AL 36 A 45 3 & i A — 8 3E AZ 1 2
2009, the amount represented deposit paid for acquisition T4 - R EENE=A=+—
of the entire equity interests of Group Success International H > A BB %ﬁ%@%qﬁtﬁ%Group
Limited (“GSI”), a company incorporated in the BVI. The Success International Limited ([ GSI J)
deposit was non-interest bearing. Details of the acquisition (RIEE R L REE M, 2 A F) 2
are set out in note 40. A TR A E A T C AT B R 4 o AR
Bl R FH R o W% TE U 2 R R AR
& B s R Mt 40 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

29. FEUBRIE

2010 2009
e L
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Accounts receivable arising from the M EEEGPEEZ
business of dealing in securities: JEE W R IH
— Cash clients —Bl&%F 38,563 70,568
— Margin clients: —REEKF
— Directors and their associates —E R
N 1,934 1,501
— Other margin clients —HAitfREEEF 1,409,060 1,282,602
— A broker —— /KL - 3,606
— Hong Kong Securities Clearing —HiEHREEARAA
Company Ltd 32,086 -
Accounts receivable from futures MEEBESHNEGFPELE
clearing house arising from the A B B & 5 2 BRI
business of dealing in futures HRIH
contracts 8,593 5,487
Commission receivable from brokerage A& [ . B K& 4 K& & b #H
of mutual funds and insurance-linked % & 5 # K 2 5 2 & 40
investment plans and products R B 2 1 i AR 4 - 27
1,490,236 1,363,791
Less: Impairment allowance W Y (E A (11,568) (15,740)
1,478,668 1,348,051

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
cash clients, a broker and securities clearing house are two
days after trade date while account receivable from futures

clearing house is one day after trade date, respectively.

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$6,792,000 (2009:
HK$4,792,000) which are past due at the reporting date
but which the Directors of the Company consider not to be
impaired as there has not been a significant change in credit

quality and a substantial portion of the carrying amount is

subsequently settled.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

BWHEEF  — 2L LEHRLEH
i < WRTE WY IE W 45 B 7 22 oy HAR
- T e i 40 B &5 08 i 2 BR JRLRG IE
AWML HE—H -

RERF 2 EWIRE S > A RHE
H 1 © % #0918 17 {E £56,792,000% 76
(T BB 1 4,792,0008 T0) Z MEWL
FRIE > MEAR N A RS A B AN
MWE NAFRREZFEERL
e T A A ) T K A MR T (B R AR
H1E - \




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — continued 29. BN BRTE — &

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which

are past due but not impaired at the respective end of the

LA i R 26 0 E Sl 408 9 (2 B
&R RE BRI 5 > A B R 6% A

reporting period, the ageing analysis (from settlement date) (FH&B RS WF -
is as follows:

2010 2009
—g-3E | —ETLE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR T#5 7T
0 — 30 days 0% 30K 783 3,460
31 — 60 days 31E 60K 6,009 1,332
6,792 4,792

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying
amount of HK$31,771,000 (2009: HK$65,776,000) are
neither past due nor impaired at the reporting date and
the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the

amounts are considered recoverable.

Loans to securities margin clients are secured by clients’
pledged securities with fair value of HK$4,063,163,000
(2009: HK$3,112,916,000). The loans are repayable on
demand and carry interest at Hong Kong prime rate +
3% to 4% (2009: Hong Kong prime rate + 3% to 4%).
No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the
Directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of securities margin

financing.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable are individually
impaired margin loans with an aggregate outstanding
balance of HK$12,611,000 (2009: HK$18,618,000) where
the balances are not fully secured. The Group held collateral
for these debtors which are listed equity securities with a
fair value of HK$2,105,000 (2009: HK$3,302,000) at the
end of the reporting period.

" GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED &#7 2R ERA T

RS H > BRII{E 531,771,000 70
(= ZFEE L ¢ 65,776,000% J0) 2 JE
W B 4 % 5 22 R TE A I 4B 3 34 7 R ik
B > AN ) # H 58 5 A B K H 2y mT LA
W =] o

BTHEHEREEREF ZEXHURF
ZHME SR > FREHZ AR
{H %44,063,163,000% 76 ( —FF LA
3,112,916,000%5 JC)  F B Bk H A% 48
IR R > DLE S i B B R R N3 e F 4
JE(ZEFIUE - B REER M3
JEZAE) FHE o 8 a8 5 IR A & Rl &
ET 2 W - B IR BT I 4%
FEANMER > [ LS 2 B 5 R S A AT o

A AR ] 2 M i R TE S AR E R A
ik £412,611,000%5 76 (= F & JLA4F
18,618,000%5 7T) 2 Fll i { {1 #& 4 &
K o B A R O A A T HE AT o R
HHR > AEBHZERUGKIEREA
Z AR 5 B 2,105,000% 76 (—
FEILE  3,302,0008 70) 2 AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

In determining the allowance for impaired loans to
securities margin clients, management of the Group
considers the margin shortfall by comparing the market
value of stock portfolio and the outstanding balance of loan
to securities margin clients individually. Impairments are
made for those clients with margin shortfall as at year end

and with no settlement after the year end.

In addition to the individually assessed allowance for
impaired debts, the Group has also provided, on a collective
basis, a loan impairment allowance for accounts receivable
arising from the business of dealing in securities with
margin clients that are individually insignificant or accounts
receivable where no impairment has been identified
individually. Objective evidence of collective impairment
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, internal credit rating and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

Movement in the allowance for impaired debts in respect of

loans to securities margin clients is as follows:

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—RHIEE

29. B BRIE — &

AEREHBREEELSRBEEF
B Z WA A > i SR
KEZBRFEHEGTHEEEF A S22 K
8 7 B BN R AR L > AT % R R R
SZHEREE AEMRFELHAZE
F AR a8 a0 R a5 R E A BB AR 4
i) AE R AE -

B 7 8 51 3t A 96K (L £ 5 2 184 41
A 42 [ O At B O AR B R P H
I Z W5 1 He TR I Sif 5 A e
W AR TE > Sz 88 R ) B T 2 H B
T8 (L 114 B WSCSHR T > LA o R YA A Ui
AR TELAE (B A -
E:2 ks TIRTECE S JUPAIE L
TR AR A5 B FF A% > LA K BRI SRR JE 7 4
A B Y 1B 5% 58 b O AR 9 19 L 2 ] BB A
2o

i TR R e F 2 B2 WE R
B E B I

2010 2009

i “EENE

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

FET T# T

Balance at beginning of the year R 15,740 18,296
Reversal for the year AF TR $E [ (4,127) -
Write-off 15 (45) (2,556)
Balance at end of the year AEARCEL R 11,568 15,740

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BE-T-TF-A=-tHBLFE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising

from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due

29. EWERIE — &

R T RS R 2 R B R F REURL
WRIH b AR A T B £ KK B

from certain related parties. The details are as follows: HF -
Maximum  Market value
amount of pledged
outstanding securities at
Balance at Balance at during  fair value at
Lst April 31st March the year 31st March
BOAEER
i ZEER
ROMA-A =ZA=+-H ERWR® ZA=t-H
Name i A3 &R AEESH 2T E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#T T T T
Directors of the Company ARRES
Mr. Wong Sheung Kwong EMNLEA
2009 “EENA 862 - 902 -
2010 ZZ-%F - - 224 -
Mr. Cheng Wai Ho and associates ~ Mp{# i 76 4 ROH BB A+
2009 “FE0F 2,771 1,501 3,011 2,404
2010 “F %R 1,501 1,934 1,934 3,508

DA = 45 5 7% 700 R AR 3 310 4 S H At
PR 8 < 0 5 M £ 3t 2 ) A 4 10 7 2
MG E -

The above balances are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates

offered to other margin clients.

30. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 0. FEREDY X

FOR SALE

2010 2009
—E2-FF ZEENEF
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T# T

Cost: A
At beginning of the year N2 42,082 40,537
Additions B 157 1,545
At end of the year NG 42,239 42,082

~ GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #4742 B R 2 & Annual Report 2010 &k




30. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR SALE - continued

The management of the Group expects the whole amount
of properties under development to be completed and

released to market between 2 to 3 years from 31st March,

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—HIEE

30. FERREFYWER-E

A4 ) L TE R p e 2 A
EEMR _F-FF=A=+—HE&
RHI B = RVE RS

2010.
Gross floor Effective Stage of Anticipated
Location Lease expiry Type (square meter) % held completion completion
b AREHR BEREAZ
HEEMFHS ER (7 K) BOW THER RETHRAS
No. 520 2047 Residential 6,455 60  Piling in progress February 2013
Tuen Tsz Wai (B EEMITHBEIR —F—=4_J
Tuen Mun
New Territories
iR
0
LS|
5204
INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 31, WEIpE
2010 2009
—s-8F  _ZETuE
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
FET T#IT
Held for trading: FeEEE -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong A% #5 | 1 2 JRA #8 75 20,182 18,561
Equity securities listed outside REBESN BT
Hong Kong JBe A 7 5 23,584 -
Designated as at FVTPL: 5 7E Fy 4% A FUAE R 1R A5 T RR
Convertible notes (note a) AT Y B B (K ata) 56,829 65,439
Unlisted investment fund (noze b) LT ER S (M itb) 28,000 =
128,595 84,000
Analysed as Vigiw
Current i) 43,766 84,000
Non-current i B 84,829 =
128,595 84,000

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_T-TF-A-t+—HLFE

31. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
— continued

Notes:

(a) The convertible notes held by the Group as at 31st March,
2010 bear fixed interest of 8% per annum and are due
in 2013 (subject to carly redemption). The issuer of the
convertible notes, shall use its best effort to procure the
occurrence of a qualified initial public offering (“IPO”)
before the maturity of the convertible notes. The notes
holders could elect to convert certain amount of the principal
and interest into the ordinary shares at a price with reference
to its IPO price. If no qualified IPO occurs, the notes holders
are entitled to extra interest return, ranging from 7.5% to

10% per annum.

The convertible notes as at 31st March, 2009 were issued by
Hong Kong listed companies and bore fixed interest at rates
ranging from 1.5% to 2% per annum. All convertible notes
held by the Group as at 31st March, 2009 were converted
into shares or redeemed during the year ended 31st March,
2010.

The fair values of the convertible notes as at year ended
31st March, 2010 and 2009 were estimated by Messrs. CB
Richard Ellis, an independent firm of professional valuers not

connected with the Group.

(b) The principal investment objective of the fund is to achieve
capital appreciation through medium/long term equities
investment in selected Asian region/countries. No investment
has been made by the fund as of 31st March, 2010. The
major assets of the fund as at 31st March, 2010 were bank
balances.

3. BB RE-E

Wit -

(a)

(b)

AEER - F-FFE=ZH=4—HFF
2 0] I SRR 8 T 2 [ A A A R 5
SR A = — AR B Y (R AR
) o A i SR 2 AT N JH AR S B
i T 0 P S B A R B — TH A R A
FERAHEE ((HRAHEE]D -
EHRA A EER2E HERAH
BEEER W ER S T REZ A S
TR B A A e - R BLA
ER I IRA BB > R RREA AR
HEAT RS RS B (A F 554758
F10/H) -

REERRFEZA =+ —HZ Ak
SRR EE LW AR > AT
JE 282, 08 2 [ 5E 4R A 5t B o ALEM
REERAF=EA=ZT—HRAEZE
AR EC R BRE - FE =
HZ=+—H k4R B R s iy 5 2
Wl m] o

AR R R ER T
F=HA=1—H2ZR TR
PR ARG o tH FR0 B A fy B 4R N
I ) 2 2 8 ST Al (L A AT

WA A 2 F B H R R e
HE Y Hb B A R AR AR R T
B AN o ZHES N S E A
“H=1t—HimAERKRE - %L
MROE—FE=A=+—HZEEE
FE 2y SRAT 45 Bk o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. BANK BALANCES - CLIENT ACCOUNTS

33.

34

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients
and other institutions during the course of conducting
its regulated activities in its ordinary course of business.
Such clients’ monies are maintained in one or more
segregated bank accounts. The Group has recognised the
corresponding account payables to respective clients and

other institutions.

BANK BALANCES - GENERAL
ACCOUNTS AND CASH

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits at market interest rates with an original

maturity of three months or less.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

32.

33.

34.

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—ZTF=A=1+—RHIEE

RITER-FFKRF

AR S T 0 FI RS I AT 2 B
e O B T WS TRIE 495 % e L A
B2 1 % o B H P IR —
{8 5% 43 S RATHR I« A% % 11 O
WG 1 P e LA S Aot 2 3
IH o

RITER-—REFERS
A OB BAE A LM A 2 B4 D
Rt 5 M % at B JRE B H A = (e

HEA A Z 5 SR AT A7 3K -

48R0 LT

2010 2009
—s-%F | —EENF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T#IT
Accounts payable arising from the HWHEEBEEGPEEZ
business of dealing in securities: JEAT IR IE
— Cash clients —HExRF 124,827 95,434
— Margin clients —RBEEEF 140,541 109,128
— Clearing houses — &5 E - 78,940
Accounts payable to clients arising MBEAHEEETELZ
from the business of dealing in A % F IR IE
futures contracts 19,582 12,947
Commission payable for brokerage of — F. 2 3 4 N f g A B % &
mutual funds and insurance-linked a ) K 7 i 2 R AL IR 2
investment plans and products JRE AT 4 <6 - 18
284,950 296,467

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

34. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE — continued 34, E{TRRIE — &

The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to cash
clients and securities clearing houses are two days after trade

date. The age of these balances is within 30 days.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand and carry interest at 0.25% (2009: 0.25%) per
annum. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion
of Directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of securities margin

financing.

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits received
from clients for their trading of futures contracts on the
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”). The
excesses of the outstanding amounts over the required initial
margin deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to
clients on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in
the opinion of Directors, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of futures

contract dealing.

Commission payable for brokerage of mutual funds and
insurance-linked investment plans and products is settled
immediately once the Group has received payments from
fund managers/policy issuers. The age of this balance as at
31st March, 2009 was within 60 days.

Included in accounts payable to margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due
to Directors and their associates of HK$977,000 (2009:
HK$3,965,000).

" GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED &#712RERAT

JEAT I 4 %7 Kok o 46 T 2 IR TE Y
EWHGEBAMAXS HEMHE %54
ik Z MR F30 K A o

IR AR R 4 P K T 2R R B R IR
BT B A%0.258 (ZFF N4 : 0.25E)
ZHENFFR - BN HREEME
W 2V AR A IR 4 A I A
BAME R > [ Il 4 DY 5% R A T o

MESHNHEXBPELZEMNEF
WRIH - AR %5 OB LA i 0 &
Loy A RAR (TR ) EE R
FR 2R S o B ST L E
i s Z 0020 IR 4 4 4 2 i R AR 7R K
o HINEF BRI EE - R R
BREBXEH ME > EHR AR
r e 3 HERANE > TR U S 4 4 R AR
e o3 #r o

G T AR B A B B0 R B %
RERC RS 2 BEAT A & > 5 i A 4R B 4
B REH AR B AT N OB IE 4% B
RIS 4 - BLIHAS BRI —FF L= A
=+ —HZIRE 0K LA -

WHRHBRERELEZEMNMRESEEF
HRTE > F 95 JE A 3 5 S A% 55 2 i &
AN EKIE977,000% 70 ( —FFJLAF -
3,965,000 7C) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY

36

SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured
and repayable on demand. The amounts are interest-free
except for an amount of HK$nil (2009: HK$71,104,000)
which bears interest at Hong Kong prime rate. Subsequent
to the acquisition of the minority interest (see note 40), this
amount was eliminated on consolidation of the acquiree

into the Group.

DERIVATIVES

On 19th April, 2006, the Company entered into an option
agreement with Honeylink Agents Limited (“Honeylink”)
pursuant to which the Company had agreed to grant share
options to Honeylink, at a consideration of HK$2,000,000,
to subscribe for up to 400,000,000 option shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.68 within the first 12 months
from the date of option granted, HK$0.70 within the
next 12 months from the first anniversary of the date of
option granted and HK$0.72 within the next 12 months
from second anniversary of the date of option granted
(the “Honeylink Options”). Honeylink was committed to
subscribe at least HK$20,000,000 worth of option shares
before the expiry of the option agreement. The option
agreement was approved by the independent sharcholders in
the extraordinary general meeting held on 7th June, 2006.
No options were exercised by Honeylink during the years
ended 31st March, 2009 and 31st March, 2010. As at 31st
March, 2009, 231,588,236 option shares remained under
the option agreement. All outstanding share options were

not exercised and expired on 6th June, 2009.

At 31st March, 2009, the fair value of the Honeylink
Options was HK$nil. The fair value changes of the
Honeylink Options during the year ended 31st March,
2009, amounting to HK$13,653,000 was recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The fair value as at 31st March, 2009 was calculated by
using the Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

35.

36.

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT-ZF=-F=+—HILEE

RDBRRAKE

IR B TR K T o S KA B U R
AR o BR A BE U T (ZFF LA
71,104,000 JC) 2 K 1 Fr s B 8
FIRFHESL > HERKIE 5 B o IR
WD OB R 48 (LB 5E40) 18 > A
FIE T A T D A A 5 [ IRF K8 o

PTHET A

B EENRNENA T IUHE A
2y A BlHoneylink Agents Limited
([Honeylink |) #T 57 BAHE fih & - 8 1t0
A% % A [A] & £A2,000,000%5 76 2 X 15 1]
Honeylink#% thi v] 58 1 £ £ 400,000,000
e A HE I 0y 2 W R R AR 0 RE
H R FF o+ 8 A 2 58 W5 E £50.68
WG~ B R B O R R — A
HERZ T ZMA N Z R 550.704
TG o T AR A RE U N T A AR
Bzt A0 A W R AR 550,728 0T
(I Honeylink i #£ 1) ° HoneylinkK &
SN 7 H0 E 1% o I T SR A 0 fE [
20,000,000%% 7T Z JARE By o A RE 1h okt
AR ENAENH L H BT 2 B
A K& b S R At M © Honeylink
WEECEZFNFEH= A&
FT—FEZH =+ — B IR
ITEHHRE - R FRNEFE=H =+ —
H > 415 Wk JH N 15 4231,588,236/%
HARE LA o BT A AR AT M 300 B R AT M6
W B R ZFRILENH N H W o

W _EFERLE=ZH=1+—H "
Honeylink ] # 2 24 fu{H £ F ¥ T »
Honeylink # it # £ = F F JL4F =
AZ+t—HALEHEEZAREES L
13,653,0009 7T 37 £ 74 5 A 42 T Wi 4 %
HERT o

ARMETIRZFEFNEZA =+
DES S5 VY N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE—_ZT-ZTF=A=1+—HItEE

36. DERIVATIVES - continued

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Spot market price L& T 5 (E A%
Exercise price e M8
Expected volatility TEL I 4 W
Average expected life - 34 1 4 4 1
Risk-free rate 3 J o 1) %6
Dividend yield s

37. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

(i) On 19th June, 2009, the Company issued a
convertible note amounting to HK$158,400,000 at
a conversion price of HK$0.25 per share (which is
subject to adjustment for anti-dilutive effect for issued
share capital). The convertible note, which can be
converted into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time prior to maturity date, was issued at par value,
interest free, and is repayable at par in two years. The
holders of the note are not entitled to vote at general
meetings of the Company. After the issue date, the
Company may redeem the outstanding convertible
note at 100% of the principal amount outstanding.
The note is not transferable without the written

consent of the Company.

The convertible note contains two components,
liability component with early redemption options
which are closely related to the host instrument, and
conversion option which is equity. The equity element
is presented in equity under the heading “convertible
note equity reserve”. On initial recognition, the fair
value of the liability component with early redemption
options was estimated to be HK$123,095,000 and
the effective interest rate of the liability component of
the convertible note was 13.8%. Accordingly, a value
of HK$35,305,000 was allocated to the conversion
option. The entire convertible note was converted
into 633,600,000 shares at the conversion price of
HKS$0.25 per share during the year ended 31st March,
2010. No convertible note was outstanding as at 31st
March, 2010.

36. TETRA-&
A 2 ERIT

37. |
(i)

31st March, 2009
—EEAEFE=A=+—H

HK$0.201#5 7C
HK$0.72% JC
67.73%

0.05 year4f:
0.04%

9.95%
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A 4R I AR B R
o8 SR AE A FF £5123,095,0009 € >
[IIEY % S=Ri- Xy ]
R 513.8JH o [F I > 35,305,000
JG 2 AE(E B 4 B % R B - B IH
AR EECRERE —F—FF
= H =+ —H b4 B A i R AE
B 520.25 % T 1 % £4633,600,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. CONVERTIBLE NOTES - continued
(i) On 20th September, 2007, the Company issued a

convertible note amounting to HK$100,000,000 at
a conversion price of HK$0.907 per share (which
is subject to adjustment for anti-dilutive effect for
issued share capital). The convertible note, which can
be converted into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time prior to maturity date, was issued at par
value, bears interest at a rate of 5% per annum payable
quarterly in arrears, and is repayable at par in three
years. The holders of the note are not entitled to vote
at general meetings of the Company. After the expiry
of 18 months following the issue date, the holders
may request the Company to redeem the outstanding
convertible note held by them, and the Company,
if considered appropriate, can choose to redeem the
outstanding convertible note at 100% of the principal
amount together with interest accrued up to the date
of redemption. The Company has the right to repay
part or all of the convertible notes at the 100% of the
principal amount and the accrued interest thereon 9
months after the issue date. The note is transferable

without the written consent of the Company.

The convertible note contains two components,
liability component with early redemption options
which are closely related to the host instrument, and
conversion option which is equity. The equity element
is presented in equity under the heading “convertible
note equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of the
liability component of the convertible note is 7.24%.
On 12th August, 2008, the Company early redeemed
the entire convertible note of HK$100,000,000.

The fair value of the liability component, on the
date of redemption determined with reference to
the discount rate of 7.25% representing the then
prevailing borrowing rate of the Company, was
HK$98,817,000. The excess of the fair value over the
carrying amount of the liability component resulted in
a loss of HK$4,999,000 from the redemption of the
convertible note and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, in 2009. No
convertible note was outstanding as at 31st March,
2009.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

37. 1
(ii)

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BE-T-TF-A=-tHBLFE

37. CONVERTIBLE NOTES - continued

The movement of the liability component of the convertible

37. AR EE &
] 460 5 B 3 0 A

notes for the years is set out below: By g anr

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EEILE

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FExT T#T

At beginning of the year ) - 93,120

New issue AT 123,095 -

Effective interest B A 1,205 2,531
Interest payment SR AR - (1,833)
- Redemption g [m] - (93,818)
’ Conversion 1B (124,300) -
At end of the year N o - -

38. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

38. ELBEBERRE
UTAM$$V&%W$ £ 2
ERAL B A (L) u&ﬁiﬁ-

recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior years:

Collective
impairment

Accelerated tax Revaluation on loans and

depreciation of properties advances Total
ERREBXR
MERERE ERNR <KRHE At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
At 1st April, 2008 REFFENFEMA—H 794 4,408 (6) 5,196
Effect of change in tax rate FiR sl 2 2 (45) (252) = (297)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (7 A) 4T BR A 4F B # 4
for the year (439) (975) 2 (1,412)
Charge to equity for the year 1 BR A4 B HE - 282 - 282
At 31st March, 2009 REZZFRFE=ZA=+—H 310 3,463 (4) 3,769
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (1A ) $11 Bk 4% 4F f 5 4
for the year (334) 1,425 1 1,092
Credit to equity for the year AT AR BEHE 45 = (3) - 3)
At 31st March, 2010 REZ—-FE=A=+—H (24) 4,885 (3) 4,858

~ GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED 4174283 iR 2 5

Annual Report 2010 &3}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - continued

At the end of the reporting period,
unrecognised tax losses of HK$15,

the Group had
069,000 (2009:

HK$14,585,000) available to offset against future profits.

The tax losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty

of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

39. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised:
At 1st April, 2008
and 31st March, 2009
Increase on 27th August, 2009

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—HIEE

38. EEHERE &

AR HIR > A E 415,069,000 I
(ZFEZIUF 1 14,585,000% I0) 2 K il
SR T s 48 T DA B SR ok i A - i
AR BEH AR LA AU - R I
SETE R BLIE 48 o A HERRBLIE 5 48 T
40 I ) 4 o

39. IR 2

S 5 1% B i T (E0. 105 TG

o

Number of shares
iz 2 B

000 HK$ 000

THE Fib

W OEENENA—H &
CEEBANE=HAH=+—H 4,000,000 400,000
W oEFEENLFEANH —+LEH

Ham 6,000,000 600,000
At 31st March, 2010 W B —-FIE=ZH=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT MBI

At 1st April, 2008

B FEFNEMA—H K

and 31st March, 2009 —EENFE=H=+—H 3,168,876 316,888
Conversion of convertible note A $ % 22 4

(Note 37) (BtiE37) 633,600 63,360
Placements of shares g & S oy

(Note (a) & (b) below) (F XMt Ft @) K b)) 409,000 40,900
Exercise of options A7 fol i 5 e

(Note (z) below) (F XM 7E(a) 38,000 3,800
At 31st March, 2010 N _E—-FFE=H=+—H 4,249,476 424,948

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

39. SHARE CAPITAL - continued
Notes:

(a) Pursuant to the placement agreement dated 15th September,
2009, 109,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each were placed
to an independent third party at a price of HK$0.55 per
share. On the same date, pursuant to the same placement
agreement, a non-transferable call option was also granted
to the placee. The non-transferable call options entitled the
placee to the right to subscribe 38,000,000 new shares of the
Company in whole (but not in part) at price of HK$0.55
at any time during the option period from 29th September,
2009 to 28th September, 2011. The options were fully
exercised on 20th January, 2010 resulting in the issue of
38,000,000 new shares.

The aggregate fair value of the option as at 29th September,
2009 was approximately HK$4,096,000, which was
calculated by using the Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing
Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Spot market price B8 i 5 A%
Exercise price T fE
Expected volatility TELHA 5
Expected life T A RO
Risk-free rate e e iz 1) 2
Dividend yield =

Expected volatility was determined by using the daily
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
previous 520 days. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioural consideration.

(b) Pursuant to the placement agreement dated 16th March,
2010, 300,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each were placed by
a major shareholder to independent third parties at a price
of HK$0.5 per share. Pursuant to the top-up subscription
agreement dated 16th March, 2010, the major shareholder
subscribed 300,000,000 shares at a price of HK$0.5 per

share.

39. RA&— &
s

(a)

(b)

WP A -ZZNFEILATHHA
2 T B 1% 7 > 109,000,000 /5% 4 i T {E
0.10% 7T 2 B B 3% 5 1055 7T 2
A ELE T — BB E =T - FH >
MR [R] — 13 i 65 1 ok > 5% 7R IiC A\ R4
82T — TE R Al B R A o 2% 0H
A R R N M R T R i A
F o AR HAREAT A N (B =R E L
ERA T+ ARE -F——4HFENH
TN H) BB AT R I B R D i
J800.55 5 TG 2 A5 A% w8 I A (1 JF 6
43) 38,000,000 % 7= 2 &) 8 LA o B
e =R —FFE—H T HRE
13 > A28 &) R T % 738,000,000
JRE 8 PR A o

AHBEMER -2 FE LA =T LH
2 48N FeAE A0 F44,096,0003 T > T LA
LR B A T o B U
AZERR -

HK$0.455%5 7C
HK$0.55%5 G
63.23%

2 yearsff
0.50%

4.40%

TP T3 LAA 2y w] SRR A ST 520 H
A R S 7 R o AR AR S T 2
TR A 200 AR R A B B A T
R ATRERG AT A E EE R
ST o A R AR R

WAL —F—RFE= A
T B o ik > — 44 KR 4% B9 k0. 5k ot
2 B 5 18] 8 5755 = T B ££300,000,000
Ji& 55 JB T 0. 1095 T 2 Ay » AR 45
Wik = F—F4EZH 7N H 2 L
Wbk > 5% 4 KB R 4% 55 0. 5% 6 2
B #% 52 15300,000,000 % % £33 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

41.

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group held 90% interest in
More Profit International Limited (“More Profit”). During
the year, the Group acquired the entire share capital of GSI
and the shareholder’s loan owing by GSI to its shareholder
at a total consideration of HK$100 million. As a deposit of
HK$50 million was paid in the year of 2009 as disclosed
in note 28, the remaining HK$50 million was paid in the

current year for the acquisition.

As at the date of acquisition, GSI had no other significant
assets and liabilities except outstanding balances with the
Group and the 10% equity interest in More Profit which
in turn held 50% interest in Great China. Accordingly, the

acquisition was accounted for as an acquisition of assets.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a) The share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”) of
the Company was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 16th May, 2002. The
major terms of the Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:

(i) The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to the participants for their

contribution to the Group.

(ii) The participants of the Option Scheme include:
(a) any employee or director (including executive
director, non-executive director and independent
non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (b) supplier or potential supplier of goods
and services; (c) customer or potential customer;
(d) person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support; (e)
shareholder of any member of the Group; and (f)
adviser or consultant or any joint venture partner
or business alliance of any member of the Group
or any counterparty to any transaction of any

member of the Group.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—ZTF=A=1+—RHIEE

40. WIE—REKMB QA

41.

ATEENE=ZHA=+—H  AEH
¥# A More Profit International Limited
([ More Profit]) Z90%HE%: = 48 » AR
£E [H WG ST 2 &R I AR S GSTR H %
W2 e HE K #8AE £5100,000,000
W0 o SR AN FE28 AT B #E > 50,000,000
Wz R ZFEIIFE A
A L H % 1950,000,0009 76 J% 1A AR 4F B
A A i S I S A

U H o R T B A AR 2 R E R
ZER A K iR More Profit (More Proficfl)
Fe i Krp #2509 0 4 ) 2 10%M% 4 HE
4 A > GSTAI i H Al o 2 7 I £
R i i S TE T ARSI A I P -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(@)

— continued

(iii) The maximum number of shares which may be

(iv)

W)

(vi)

issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of
the issued share capital of the Company from

time to time.

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the

Company in issue.

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each
participant in any twelve-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the

Company for the time being.

There is no minimum period required for
the holding of a share option before it can be

exercised.

(vii) A share option may be exercised at any time

during a period to be determined by the
Directors, the period may commence on a day
after the date upon which the offer for the grant
of share options is made but shall not be later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share

option.

(viii) The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,

must be made within 21 days from the date of the
offer of grant of the share option.

" GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #1712 RER AT

41. IR EET & -]

(a)

— 4

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BRL AT ol AR 4% e 1 ) e A
45 8] 2 AT o] L Al S A T 3B
P A% K i RAT 2 T A
JBCHE T AT BEZH T 84T 2 Bl
HH ERAFABEAARA
A AN IRF 2 84T A AR AT
B 78 25 0 230% ©

PR A (8 AR 452 S B it o) S AR
A 1) 22 A A S P )
Jir % 4 22 P A Wi B T T RE
AT 84T Z B B wE A
3 A 2 A B8 AT B 2
10% °

AT ART 12418 3 TR AT AR
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JEHE > T A 2T AT
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Jie A5 %8 B ([7] e A48 © 47 5%
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R R AR N ] IR BB AT AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(a) — continued

(ix) The exercise price of a share option must be the

higher of:

a. the closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations on the date of the offer of
the grant;

b.  the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer
of the grant; and

c. the nominal value of the share of the

Company.

(x) The Option Scheme will expire on 5th June,
2012.

Other than as disclosed in (b), there was no share
option granted to employees or suppliers during the
years ended 31st March, 2010 and 2009.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR
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For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HREMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE—_ZT-ZTF=A=1+—HItEE

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Pursuant to a memorandum of understanding

41. BRESTE -&
(b) WA %EHBEF TV Limited

(“MOU”) dated 21st August, 2009, entered by
the Group and F.TV Limited (“FTV?”), FTV will
contribute resources to develop, upgrade and improve
the businesses of the hotel complex located at Macau
held by Great China. In return, the Company has
granted 19,000,000 share options to FTV to subscribe
for 19,000,000 shares of the Company on 21st August,
2009. The share options granted vested immediately
and will expire on 20th August, 2010.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options held by FTV and movements in such
holdings during the year:

(TFTV ) A = FFJLENA
o — B ET L 2 R S k([ FR
fife fs 8k 1) > FTVI & 4 H B U8
DL~ $SID oiE foR b
R LR R 2 G A8 A AR
B - Bt KAFRBE R _-F
ZIHENH Z+— HMFTVIR H
19,000,000 1] 8 19,000,000/
AN TR 2 BE R RE o TRt 2
i JBE R 0 B B o IO A A —F —
FENH .+ HEW -

T R BEFTVERA 2 A A I A%
PE Y RN S HER A 2 i B HE A 4
Al ) 5 )

Number of share option

BREHE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
as at 1st during during as at 31st
April, 2009 the year the year March, 2010
R-BEBNE R-B-%F%
H—H =H=+—*H
Option grant date BREKLAH te K 47 EREH ERTH 1 K 47

FTV - supplier FTV—{i FE 7

21st August, 2009 “EENEAAZT—H 19,000,000 — 19,000,000
Exercisable at the A A 5 W ] 47
end of the year 19,000,000

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately
before the date of grant of share options was HK$0.82

per share.

The Directors considered that the fair value of the
services received cannot be estimated reliably. The
Group measured the value of the services and the
corresponding increase in equity, indirectly, by fair

value of the equity instruments granted.

The estimated fair values of the options granted were
HKS$3,314,000. The Group recognised the total
expenses of HK$3,314,000 during the year ended 31st
March, 2010.

SRR A E AT 2 A F
W T 18 £y B 120829 T -

G0 A T 5E R BT O 2 iR
B R SUME o AL ISR T 17 A
TH 2 7% su e ) 45 5t &2 A B i Bs
Z AB{EL A K HE 4 B R R 2

Frid A A RES
3,314,000% JC - A EF R E —F —
TAEZH =+ — B IL4E a2 B
¥ /43,314,000% TG ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—HIEE

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 41, BBRRESTE — &
(b) — continued (b) —#4

The fair value of share options at the date of grant was
calculated by using the Black-Scholes-Merton Option
Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were as

follows:

Spot market price BB 5 S
Exercise price 754
Expected volatility T PR
Expected life TE A RO
Risk-free rate 41 J gt A1) %
Dividend yield fi% B 2

Expected volatility was determined by using the daily
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 260 days. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise

restrictions and behavioural consideration.

W IR R R M H 2 AR B TS A
R S I E A AR - B
XA Z FRAT

HK$0.82¥5 JG
HK$0.825 JC
79.41%

1 year’f:
0.16%
2.44%

TEHY 0 ) DA AR 2 ) AR S S
260 H 22 45 H JEE 52 35 R i 72 © R
A T A 00 B AR 45 A B
& 35 AN T R B~ AT BRI
VSRV BN A Ewa 2 Tk e
w0 A o

42. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the

42, RIKBRIFHE
A £E (8] AR 5% 5 )k 2 4 T o 6% 451
2 4RI AR ) 7 s AT 4 A O B
HEBRER B (RS E )
U8R 4 S I 2 W o — ) o 3 3L
S FTHA o A5 48 I B AR 48 5 A5 0 A
B E > B4 EAS IR B H A BAA

rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The

Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution

requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate L2 5001k o {3t 2R N 42 A 4 T W 26
income. The contributions are charged to the consolidated FHIK o

statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE—_ZT-ZTF=A=1+—HItEE

43. LEASE COMMITMENTS 43. AR
The Group as lessee AEBMBEAA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had T B R AN 4R TR AT B 2
commitments for future minimum lease payments under N ) RS TR A I R AR B IR B R
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises HZBMHEWTF -

which fall due as follows:

2010 2009
—2-FF —EFNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT R
i A Within one year —4E R 1,102 541
e In the second to fifth year inclusive B OFERBENLERN
o (BRI & W 4F) 588 -
1,690 541
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by 48 %5 R 49 A5 2 26 A 4 [ kL T
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are INEWEREAT 2 FL A o FLA DL W
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are AE 7 FHHH P > A 4 R 2 HE R
fixed for an average of two years. ARG o
The Group as lessor AEEAEEBAA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had AR > LN AAEEBHE
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum BET 2 B # RAR B AR S 20E -
lease payments:
2010 2009
—E2-EF —FFNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FiERT T#IT
Within one year — 4N 734 850
In the second to fifth year inclusive BEREIAEN 3,036 2,943
(f3 B e M 4F)
Over five years hAFEE 3,469 3,962
7,239 7,755
Leases are negotiated for an average term of ten years and AL+ 4E 2 pE 2 > T4
rentals are fixed for an average of three years. IR 4R = AR A5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—HIEE

44. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 44. B A
2010 2009
S
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT T#IT
Capital expenditure in respect of the i — e 7 i 2
acquisition of a yacht contracted for BT & ER R
but not provided in the consolidated S MBI R
financial statements 2 B A B 3L 12,924 —
45. PLEDGE OF ASSETS i5. BEB
Assets with the following carrying amounts have been DTFEEmMEZEECKEM > A
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group: & B ESZ AT RLNE 2 R -
2010 2009
—E2-2F —FFIF
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
FHET T# T
Prepaid lease payments T A A 5 KOE 91,331 93,434
A property —IHY) 22,818 23,442
Investment properties BEWE 31,300 30,700
145,449 147,576
In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also s s R —BE=ZH=+—H >
secured by charges over clients’ pledged securities ANEFHZETFTHMENRHEE 2 EHM
of HK$362,462,000 at 31st March, 2010 (2009: W5 25362,462,000% 00 (= EE L4
HK$226,467,000) and corporate guarantees issued by the 226,467,000%5 7T ) LA KA 78 I 4
Company. 9 (A o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has AR IR » A4 B ] B ) 2 dR AT Rl
banking facilities totalling HK$627,350,000 (2009: &4 I 627,350,000 00 (ZEFE
HK$557,000,000) available. 4 1 557,000,000 1) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HBItEE

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

As described in the announcement of the Company dated
30th May, 2010, the Group entered into the following

agreements with various parties:

(i) More Profit, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Fast Profit Investments Limited (“FPI”)
entered into an agreement for the acquisition from
FPI of a 15% sharcholding in Great China at a total
consideration of approximately HK$324 million
subject to adjustment. Great China is currently a
50% jointly controlled entity of the Group. Upon
completion, Great China will become a 65% owned

subsidiary of the Company.

(ii) Clever Switch Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement with
Wise Gain Profits Limited (“Wise Gain”) for the
acquisition from Wise Gain of a 15% shareholding
in GWE for a total consideration of HK$2. GWE is
currently a 50% jointly controlled entity of the Group.
Upon completion, GWE will become a 65% owned
subsidiary of the Company.

These transactions were not yet completed as of the date the

consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue.

46. MEMREH

WMIMALNFHERLE - F—-FELA
=+ B Z Pk > A< g A B
A

() AN FEZ2EENE A FMore Profit
B 55 B G A R A A (T 43 17
) BT oL R A A B R AR
& K #E 2 15001 HE - AR
1B 4 £5324,000,0003 5T (7] T 7
) o R #EHFMEAEHES
509 g 2 o [F] 452 1) BB o A 5E AL
5% > KA H#E  A AR R HEA 65%
WE 4 2 M A F] o

(i) A2~ w22 EM B A FClever
Switch Limited ¥ Wise Gain Profits
Limited ([ Wise Gain ) #T 37 7 &% >
N2 A B 17 Wise Gaindit [ 4 41 15
B2 15%MBHE > BACUE M2 T -
4 BT 1 4 H TR AR £R B HE A 5090 K
fit 2 Fh [ 7 o BB o R 5 LA
A I I A B2 AR R 65 % HE
s Z [ A A o

% 55 22 T T RS A S Rk R ST %
1 R SE K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-TF=A=1+—RHIEE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. BEALXRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed I & B S i 3 EL A S 4y BT B R 2 32
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the 5 B EEBR AN AR N AR AT DL T
Group had the following related party transactions during RN w7
the year:
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2010 2009
BEATHE B8 XEUHE —E-FF “ETNEF
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FHERT T T '
Messrs. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, Commission income (Note 7) 327 93 p ‘, s
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, ,'E,: =
Cheng Wai Ho, Wong Sheung J_‘!_ )
Kwong and their associates LR
HafB e - kA - R & WA (Bt Fti)
AR e A - EMTL e A
DY E Tl YN
Honeylink Agents Limited Commission income (Note i) 338 81

(a substantial shareholder of

the Company)

Honeylink Agents Limited WA (B iti)
(EAARAF Z FEBR)
Messrs. Cheng Wai Ho, Interest income (Note ii) 128 196

Wong Sheung Kwong,

and their associates

BRI B -~ B e F SN (it 7tii)
DL EFa 1} JNER
Notes: MtE -
(i) Commission was charged at 0.125% on the total value of () WA Z A& 448 5 #E(H 2.0.125% UK | é-:!"
transactions for both years. B o y
(ii) Interest was charged at Hong Kong prime rate + 4% on the (i) AR 2 ) B 15 4 7 T A 0 B R N4 | \ :'
outstanding balance of margin loans for both years. % 55 4 R 2R 7 R B A5 R i B o .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE—_ZT-ZTF=A=1+—HItEE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47 BEALTXRE &

— continued
Compensation of key management personnel EEEES 2 H M
The remuneration of directors and other members of key O H A B BB R AR N
management during the year was as follows: mr
2010 2009
—E-FF —EThE
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T# T
Short-term employee benefits F 1048 & A 6,800 5,107
Post-employment benefits il B 1% A A 130 134
¢ 6,930 5,241

A N CH A PR 2B IR 1R
NRBL R T 85 5 1 E -

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management is determined by the performance of

individuals and market trends.

. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. KB D B4

Proportion of
Place of Class of Issued and ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held  fully paid share capital held by the Group Principal activities
fifs AEERECERR
LAER Afmred  ROERN  EBRORARRE BAt IERE
2010 2009
ZE-BF “FTNE
% %
Aol [Ep:A
Get Nice Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary US$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares
EREAHE  HER 10,0003 72 &8 At BREER
Get Nice Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$400,000,000 100 100 Securities dealing and
(“GNS”) 360,000,000 ordinary broking and securities
shares and 40,000,000 margin financing
non-voting deferred
shares (Note)
B EARHRAF wib B@lk 400,000,008 wAHERBES L
(T 17 55 360,000,000 48 it 5 Rl 4
540,000,000/
SRR (M)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—HIEE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

— continued

Name of subsidiary

kL

Get Nice Futures Company
Limited
S EARAH

Get Nice Capital Limited

HHMEARAR

pesit}

Ger Nice Asset Management
Limited

GHEEERERAF

Quality Champion Limited

AR

Get Nice Finance Company
Limited

A A IEH A R F

Allex International Limited

BRI R

Place of

incorporation

o 1R 3

Hong Kong

ik

Hong Kong

&

Hong Kong

ik

Hong Kong

ik

Hong Kong

wik

Hong Kong

Eik

Class of
shares held
Fri
gl

Ordinary

igils

Ordinary

M

Ordinary

Ordinary

figils

Ordinary

gl

Ordinary

Ll

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

48. B QBB - &

Proportion of

Issued and ownership interest
fully paid share capital held by the Group Principal activities
ARERELHRER
ERARMRRE Aol IRRH
2010 2009
“%-%F “EELE
% %
BEAl A :
HK$20,000,000 100 100 Futures and options E i
Ordinary shares broking j ,-"- . )
20,000,000 72 LEy EEET T,
Lk .
HK$10,000,000 100 100 Corporate finance services
Ordinary shares
10,000,000% 1T RMAEME
gl
HK$2,000,000 100 100 Brokerage of mutual funds
Ordinary shares and insurance-linked
investment plans and
products
2,000,000 ¢ RS RRBAR
gl SEFHE RE 2
BRFE
HK$9,000 100 100 Property holding
Ordinary shares
9,000 70 UESEE
Lk
HK$2 100 100 Money lending
Ordinary shares
2T &
gl
HK$10,000 100 100 Holding of motor vehicles P
Ordinary shares
10,0001 ¢ HARE
Lk




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE_T—ZTF=-A=1+—HLLEE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. B AT FHE &
— continued
Proportion of
Place of Class of Issued and ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held  fully paid share capital held by the Group Principal activities
Fi AEEREZHRR
LAEH EMRIEE  ROEN ERORARRA Batt IRRH
2010 2009
“E2-BF CTTOF
% %
: ERY  EAM
Prime Pacific Investments British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands Ordinary shares
ERELHE  LEK 1T A B
Steppington Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Ordinary US$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares
REELME  HER 10,000 ¢ B R
gl
Pacific Challenge Securities Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000 100 100 Inactive
Limited Ordinary shares
APRRERFARAA & @R 60,000,000 HEAER
Lk
Fortune On Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 60 60 Property development
Limited Ordinary shares
BRIEARAT Eik gl 10870 UET
Lk
Pacific Challenge Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100 100 Inactive
Hong Kong Limited Ordinary shares
KFHREEMRAERAT &b i 1 10,000,000% 1T RERER
Lk
Pacific Challenge Corporate Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$5,000,000 100 100 Inactive
Finance Limited Ordinary shares
ROFPEBLE R B R #ib R 500000087 HERHR
AR gl
Pacific Challenge Management ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 100 100 Property holding
Services Limited Ordinary shares
&k Ll 2 UES i)
Lk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-TF=A=1+—RHIEE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. B A EIE1E — &

— continued
Proportion of
Place of Class of Issued and ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held  fully paid share capital held by the Group Principal activities
fifs AREBELRER
LAEH AR ROEN EBRORARRE BOl IRRH
2010 2009
“%-%5 “EELE
% %
BAl [ :
Grace Field Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Property holding 'E : t
Ordinary shares J J,'-_ »:
A Fib BER 2 UESH -
LR i
Pacific Challenge Secretarial Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Property holding
Services Limited Ordinary shares
RTHERERERE &g Tk 10,0003 72 UESE)
HRAH gl
Gainventure Holdings Limited  British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares
ERELHE  LEK ESH SRR
Lk
Clever Switch Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares
ERESHE  HEM £ g el
Lk
Get Nice Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Ordinary shares
B RRARAA wit Bk 1,000,000 ¢ BRTE
gl
Joyful Villa Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
[slands Ordinary shares
REEAHE  EEK 1% TEER
gl
Venturecorp Investment British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands Ordinary shares
RREAHE  LEK ESH TR
gl

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZEREBR AR

Annual Report 2010 &3R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZEMBHMRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
HE-_T—ZTF=-A=1+—HLLEE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. fft B 2 R 1R — &
— continued
Proportion of
Place of Class of Issued and ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held  fully paid share capital held by the Group Principal activities
fi s ARBRECHRR
LAEH AfmIed  ROERN  BRORARRE BAtt IRRH
2010 2009
_ -g-9% —TTNG
AN % %
o Bl A
Rich Mount Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 100 100 Property holding
Ordinary shares
BEARAR Eik gl it IE i L)
Lk
NobleNet Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 100 Inactive
[slands Ordinary shares
KEEaME  LEK 1% PN
Lk
Superior Capital Assets British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 100 Inactive
Limited Islands Ordinary shares
REELRE  LEK ES AR
Lk
Get Nice International Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 100 100 Inactive
Ordinary shares
HH B RA A &k gl 2087 WEAER
gl
eCapitalist.com (Asia) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$19,500,000 100 100 Inactive
Ordinary shares
HMBRE W) ARAR R Tk 19,500,000 70 HENER
gl
Dragon Rainbow Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
[slands Ordinary shares
KEEaME  LEK 1% BB
Lk
More Profit International British Virgin Ordinary US$10,000 100 90 Investment holding
Limited Islands Ordinary shares
ERMEAHE  HER 10,0003 7 BT
Lk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
BHE-_Z-—TF=A=1+—HIEE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

48. B QBB - &

— continued
Proportion of
Place of Class of Issued and ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held  fully paid share capital held by the Group Principal activities
Fi s ARERELHRER
kL Afmred  ROEN  EBRORARRE BAt TEXE
2010 2009
“E-RF “ITNE
% %
BEAl A
Great Right Holdings Limited  British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares ¥
EEERARAR EEEGHE  THEK 1% RE R »
gl

Rise Fortune Group Limited

Islands Ordinary shares
AREMARR A RREGHE  HEK 50,0003 7
A
Get Nice Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1
Ordinary shares
BHEEARAR &k gl 1T
s
LRl

Note:

British Virgin Ordinary US$50,000

The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by two
Directors of the Company, carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote
at any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the
assets of GNS available for distribution among the holders
of ordinary shares and the holders of non-voting deferred
shares shall be applied first in paying to the holders of
ordinary shares the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per
ordinary share and secondly in repaying to the holders of
non-voting deferred shares the nominal amount paid up
or credited as paid up on such shares, and the balances of
the GNS’s assets shall belong to and be distributed among
the holders of ordinary shares in proportion to the amount
paid up or credited as paid up on such ordinary shares

respectively.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#FZERBR AR

Mfak : MRS WA I R 2

100 Property holding

UESE)

100 Inactive

BENER

A FIE S A B R I S R T B L
I 46 B i L A G 8 ATl B RO
Gl Bl R g s e B .
TATE MRS > 4 4 5% 5 w] I 43 IR T
I R N B JE 15 R A R A
N 2 o IR e ) DA S A5t 4 B 3 e
1,000,000,000,000% JG 2 2 JH T %
WA N B DER A
1y 2 BB B A MRS 2 B2 T (T
SR AR AL AR N > A AR
oz GBS R
N o i 43 Bl 4% 4% A A B S
B B BRSNS Tk 2 Ee il 3
UK ©




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B F5 1L =2
Year ended 31st March,
BE=ZA=1+—HLEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
SRRAE CRRLE CZRAE CFTAF SE-F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 | HKS$ 000
T T T T T T T T FTET
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(KtaE1) (Htat1) (Htat1) (Ht7z1) (Kiat2)
RESULTS E45
Turnover ] 151,168 213,763 644,659 246,614 271,723
et Profit (loss) before taxation A B s A (5 48) 72,535 203,586 538,864 (15,876) 261,446
5 .';| Taxation LI (12453)  (23352)  (61753)  (24762)|  (36,922)
il :
I 4
. Profit (loss) for the year A 4F B i R (R 48) 60,082 180,234 477,111 (40,638) | 224,524
e\ 1 I
-~ |
- -ft.*"
3 As at 31st March,
R=A=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

“EREAG CEELE CBEAF “EENF | ZE-F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
F#x  F#x  Fex  Fex| TFax
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Mt7E1) (Ht7t1) (Ht7t1) (t7t1) (Biat2)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ER & &

1,281,121 2,228,034 3,888,677 3,285,404 | 3,735,516
(357.,815) (771,629) (874,759) (406,703) (334,013)

Total assets

eyt
=

Total liabilities

&l

- Equity attributable to the AN A N

owners’ of the Company JRE A HE 4 923,306 1,456,405 3,013,918 2,878,701 | 3,401,503
.I Notes: MIZE -
(1) The results and assets and liabilities of the Group have been (1) AEEZESLEE RGBS AEL
¢ extracted from the consolidated statement of comprehensive ) AR SR BT S A T A AR 2R % B IR
income and statement of financial position as set out in the %o

Company’s annual report.

~ (2) The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the year 2 AEHEZE_ZFT—-FF=H=1—HILF

« ended 31st March, 2010 have been extracted from the consolidated JF 7 4k G E KA E TS R % | A 4E
statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial 32~ 33 34 M3SE T 2 45 & 2 W UL
position which are set out on pages 32, 33, 34 and 35 respectively. 2 K BA B AR I 3 o
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